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SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORP. 

SYNOVUS 
FINANCIAL CORP. 

ABOUT OUR BUSINESS 
Synovus Financial Corp.*" (Syn *o *vus) 

(NYSE-SNV) is a $7,9 billion asset, multi-finan­

cial services company headquartered in 

Columbus, Georgia, with a history that dates 

back to 1888. 

Synovus owns 34 banks serving communities 

throughout Georgia, Alabama, Florida and 

South Carolina. These banks operate within 

a decentralized management structure and 

with empowered employees who care deeply 

for the communities they serve. This unique 

approach leads to superior customer service 

and, ultimately, superior returns for shareholders. 

Synovus also owns 80.8 percent of Total 

System Services, inc." (TSYS ] (NYSETSS), 

one of the world's largest credit, debit and 

private-label card processing companies. 

TSYS provides services to issuing and acquir­

ing institutions representing more than 63 

million cardholder and 600,000 merchant 

accounts throughout the U.S., Puerto Rico, 

Canada and Mexico. In addition, Synovus 

owns Synovus Trust Company, one of the 

Southeast's largest providers of trust services; 

Synovus Securities, Inc., a full-service broker­

age firm; and Synovus Mortgage Corp., 

which offers mortgage servicing throughout 

the Southeast. 

The name Synovus is a combination of the 

words synergy and novus —"synergy" mean­

ing the interaction of separate components 

such that the result is greater than the sum of 

its parts, and "novus" (Latin for "new"), which 

means usually of superior quality and different 

from the others listed in the same category. 

Letter to 
Shareholders 

Dear Shareholders and Colleagues, 

Synovus Financial Corp. is truly Unique by Design. Like no other com­

pany, Synovus is built upon a series of beliefs that have brought us to the 

forefront in community banking. Symbolic of the Synovus "Spirit," these 

beliefs make Synovus different...unique. 

The first is A ComtTnittnent to People. Over the years, our company's suc­

cess has resulted from the dedicated planning, design and execution of 

our strategy by our team members. Each is committed to fostering an 

atmosphere that delivers to our customers and clients a level of service that 

exceeds their expectations. The strong financial performance we enjoyed 

in 1995 is attributable to the devoted efforts of this extraordinary team. 

Our Decentralized ManagetDent Structure lets local Synovus affiliate 

banks make decisions where they make the most sense — in the local com­

munity. As we've grown and more affiliate bonks have joined the Synovus 

family, that commitment to local management has not changed. Who 

knows better about the needs of your town than your local banker? 

Synovus affiliate companies also have Strong Community Involvement. 

From charity fundraisers to educational programs for children, Synovus 

affiliate companies care deeply about the health and well-being of the 

communities they serve. Our program to Recognize and Encourage an 

Atmosphere of Community and of Hope (REACH) is designed to encour­

age a personal sense of spirit and dedication throughout Synovus. 

And, finally, we have A Vision for the Future that calls for continued 

strong financial performance from our affiliate banks and Total System 

Services, Inc., one of the largest credit, debit and private-label card 

processing companies in the world. No other bank holding company has 

a valuable asset like TSYS and the growth opportunities it provides us. 

Over the years, these beliefs have served Synovus well. In 1995, we 

enjoyed a 28.1 percent growth in net income, 1.53 percent return on 

assets and a 17.92 percent return on equity. We entered our fourth state. 

South Carolina, through our merger with NBSC Corporation, and 

launched our first international venture as TSYS de Mexico converted 19 
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banks in Mexico to its card processing system. TSYS also continued to 

refine its new card processing software system, TŜ ®, announced a joint 

venture with Visa® U.S.A.'s Merchant Bank Services to form Vital Processing 

Services L.L.C. and created an alliance with DynaMark, a subsidiary of 

Fair, Isaac® and Co., Inc., to build a dynamic database marketing tool. 

Without question, 1995 was an excellent year. We realize, however, 

that to stay ahead of the game we must continue to 

focus on the details of our design, make the necessary 

adjustments to our plan and then execute our strategy 

with precision. For example, we are committed to 

offering our customers greater branch-banking conve­

nience, technology-supported personal service from 

our customer-contact team members and alternative 

banking options through technology — such as home 

banking via telephone or personal computer. 

As we approach the close of this century, we intend 

to keep our eyes focused on the target — delivering 

superior service to our customers. All of us value and 

appreciate your support and encouragement and look 

forward to continuing to perform in a manner that 

makes Synovus unique. 

Sincerely yours, 

ztdileturii On Assets 

• " • ' ' ^ » ^ , , 

" ' V l l . ^ 

James H. Blanchard 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

Return On Equity 

Aso, 

Clo&UlSLSutllycl^ 

Visa® is a federally registered service mark of Visa U.S.A. Inc. 
Fair, Isaac® is a federally registered service mark of Fair, Isaac and Co., Inc. 
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Facts & Figures 
''Our greatest a.s.set 

Ls' a col led ion of dedicated 
people who are loyal. 

con.si.slenl and hare a de.sire 
to trill. This year iras 

anoiher irinniug rear for 
the Svnorus team." 

— Stephen L. liurt.s, Jr. 
Pre.sident aiul 

Chief I inanciai Officer ..' 
Synovus liiumcial Corp. 
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SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORP. 

THE YEAR IN REVIEW 

From the beginning, 1995 seemed destined to 

be a year in which great things were to 

happen at Synovus. The early months saw the 

Synovus family grow significantly 

with the addition of three well-

respected banks — including The 

National Bank of South Carolina. 

The merger with NBSC Corp­

oration, the parent company of The 

National Bank of South Carolina, 

added $1.1 billion in assets and 

41 banking offices to the strength 

of Synovus. This transaction was 

the largest in Synovus history 

and expands our growing presence 

into four southeastern states — 

Alabama, Georgia, Florida and 

South Carolina. 

We also took important steps to 

modernize and enhance the way 

we do business: the creation of 

Synovus Trust Company and 

Synovus Administrative Services 

Corp. With more than $3.3 billion 

in assets under administration, 

Synovus Trust Company ranks as 

one of the largest providers of trust 

services in the Southeast. And 

Synovus Administrative Services 

Corp. consolidates functions such 

as human resources, risk manage­

ment, security, investor relations 

and communications. 

In 1995, both Synovus and TSYS 

continued to turn in strong financial 

performances, reporting record 

earnings each quarter. TSYS also 

announced a number of significant 

alliances — with card processing 

partners and new client banks. 

Financially and operationally, 

1995 proved to be a year of strong 

performance and significant growth 

for Synovus. 

Precise 
Advanced Move 

^ lANUARY^ 
•L--Syno¥usJtustXQinparL>d5_fQimecLirQm_CoLunihusBanJe 

Company's Trust Department to provide personal trust services, 
esfate odniimsfration, agency a n ^ custody services, invesfment 
rrranag^nWiX^retitemenTpta^n'Te^^ 

Fge_G^Flovi^rs«s^^4'©sident. Synovus Trust is one ot4he-larg©st— 
providers of trust services in the Southeast. 

• Synovus acquires Peach State Bank in Riverdale, Ga. Peach State is 
merged'^Tth~dn"exrstThg Synovus affiliate, Peachtree NdtioiTdl 7 
fiorttngmng^ieTesufting bank assets of $1 15 million grrd~Ttx full-.. 
-seLvLce^branchesin the growing market south of Atlanta:^^ 
^yriovus jjromqtes Jay C. McClung to Executive Vice 
President of Credit Administration. 

:fiMBi 
_q:S¥S-i©w+t<^uoftef-«arnings were up 32.5 percent over 
the same quarter in 1994, the most profitable quarter tq 
date in the history of the 12-year-old company. 

NOVEMBER 
''^"^yhlwus^TrfaTTctal Corp. is listed 38th in the fourftr 

©ditiofi-ot Tb© 14)0 Best Stocks to Own in Amerieet, 
• TSYS ranks 93rd on Forbes' list of "Best Small 

Businesses in the United States. 

OCTOBER 
^^.-_Synovus.rep^rts_record third quarter earnings, up 22.7 

percent compared to the same quarter in 1994. 
• Synovus promotes G. Sanders Griffith, III, to Senior 

"Vtce^esident, General Counsel and 
^Sscretoxy, 
NationsBank renews its long-term card processing 
contract with TSYS 

"VVinra7nT7?lTerrgd, President and CEO of The Natidrid^ 
r«f-Soutfi-€ctfoiina, is elected to the Synovus boctfd~of: 

-directori 

SEPTEMBER 
TSYS announces an alliance with DynaMark, a subsidiary of-Fair, Isaac 

~and~Cb., IncT^dnd aledJer in database marketing syste^rTfs~foBuTld~cr 
-dyFtofme-PftOfWifig-datcifease for TSYS' client feoser-

J!J5YS„cle_Mexica S,A.__deL„CV.--converts its .19tkhanL 
• Synovus brings 16 Olympic athletes to visit 60,000 students throughout the 

Southeast as part oFfhe company's REACH program. 
"*^^Tiovus^sremotes^Johrr T. Oliver, Jr.^To'VtcerChaiffnarrof the "Execufive 

~Committ©e^fld-RiGfw3fd-^^ tc^Vk^ OiaJfflwm-oftfie^-Boafd, 
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nent... 
by Design 

-FIBRUARY^ 
• Synovus completes largest merger in its history and entry into fourth banking state, South Carolina, with addition of 

NBSC Corporation, the parent of the $1.1 billion asset The National Bank of South Carolina, Columbia, S.C. 
ISYS ehter^medlcaTpdym'ehtTdrena wTtli FindrKe Cofp"6ra¥6n to p7oc"eTs"T^ 

1 NE 

pTTvate-labef carch" 
•Synovus anDQmiCfi.s ?0 percent inrrense in gnnrtBrly HivjHenH 
Synovus promotes Kathleen A. Martin to Senior Vice President and Modernization Director. 

• .Synnviis reports rernrH first quarter 1 995 eorr 
pz; : :xompared to the same quarter in 1994. 

,9 perrer 

• Synovus is ranked fourth best-performing bank in the country in 
US Bon/cer's annual Top 100 issue. 
— - * ^ n o v u s completes acquisition of Citizerts-iSi Merchants 

Corporation, the parent company of the $52 million asset 
/Citizens & Merchants State Bank of Douglasville, Ga. 

lynoyus' first bank in Atlanta's western suburbs. 

•Synovus is highest ranked banking-compcmy-
Georgia 100: The Best of Business" list 

compiled by The Atlanta Journal/Constitution, 
ranking 25th with TSYS ranking 33rd. 
*T'SYS adds seven new clients to its commercial 
C0fd system, increasing its share of tfie-
commercial card market to more than 50 percent. 

Synovus Administrative Services Corp. is formed to 
provide Synovus affiliate companies with human 

resources, risk management, security, public relations, 
I'jnvestor relations, communications, strategic planning and 
©thei^services with Kenneth E. Evans as^-Pfesident. 

• TSYS converts 1 8 Mexican banks through TSYS de Mexico S.A. 
de C.V., its jointly-owned subsidiary with Controladora PROSA S.A. 

— d e C.V., representing the largest conversion of credit card accounts in 
the history of Mexico's credit card industry. 

• Synovus announces record second quarter earnings, up 17.7 percent over the 
same quarter in 1994. 

• TSYS announces plans to merge its merchant processing operations with those of Visa U.S.A. by forming a sepa-
rate, for-profit company. Vital Processing Servfces, which will offer a one-stop shop for merchant clients. 

-^—TSYS purctiases 11+10,000 square foot-boildfng^on a 2"3'acre-site at Cx>rpo 
Columbus, Ga., to accommodate current work space needs and facilitate future growth. 

USMed® is a federally registered service mark of Uriited States Medical Finance Corporation. 
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eing close to the communities we 

serve is vital to the success of Synovus. 

You'll see it in almost everything we do — 

from our decentralized management struc­

ture to the participation by Synovus compa­

nies in a multitude of community activities. 

Our decentralized approach to manage­

ment empowers our team members with the 

authority to make decisions "on the spot" — 

providing exceptional service to our 

customers. Run by employees who know 

and are committed to the community, each 

Synovus company offers products and 

services designed to meet the needs of cus­

tomers in its specific market. 

Community activities like 

United Way, March of 

Dimes, Partners in Educati 

Scouting, and local Boys (̂  

Girls Clubs are as muc|i 

part of Synovus as our day- J 

to-day banking business. 

No matter where you go, 

you'll find Synovus team ','. 

members deeply involved in 

their communities. — 

From Fun Runs and Heart Checks to 

disaster relief and community theater, 

it's people who make Synovus different. 

That's why People are the first link in our 

company's Value Chain. 

Decentralized 
Bud Branson, President and 

CEO of The Quincy State Bank in 
Quincy, Fla., reads to 3- and 4-

year-olds who participate in the 
Gadsden County Healthy Babies 
Program. Focusing on pre-natal 

care and education for young 
mothers, the Healthy Babies 

Program is just one of dozens of 
local activities supported by 

Synovus team members, who 
care about the well-being of 

their communities. 

c luvv. 1 s> s 
und s\ s t n I s 

l»r ts i -n l 

Keep Reaching 

The merger with NBSC 
Corporation, the parent of 

Columbia, S.C.-based The National 
Bank of South Carolina, in February 
was the largest in Synovus' history 
and expands our growing presence 

into a fourth southeastern state. 
The move added $1.1 billion in 

assets and 41 banking offices, giv­
ing us operations in Alabama, 

Georgia, Florida and South Carolina. 

U.S. Olympian Willye White, the only 
American to hove competed on five U.S. Olympic 
Track and Field teams — winning two silver 
medals — shares a smile with a student from 
Columbus Bank and Trust Company's Partner in 
Education, South Columbus Elementary School. 

Keep REACHing, a Synovus REACH community 
effort, brought 16 Olympic athletes to elemen­
tary, middle and high schools throughout the 
Southeast. More than 60,000 students were 
inspired by the athletes' insights into the impor­
tance of having a strong sense of self-esteem, 
setting goals and reaching for those goals. 

I f People 1 Culture W Strategy J Tactics ^Performanceff Value 
m^^l^^^^iammimaB^^^'^miiimmmmimmmii^m,mm^^^^^^mmmmmm^^^mi^^mmm^^^mm...u,..«i.m,,^^^.i ,m.. • • I . I M I . ^ I I U . H J I - . J . — i g ^ l ^ ^ ^ ^ — p — 

PANTONE"* and PANTONE Cfiip Design®are registered trademarks of Pantone, Inc. 
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R E A C H 
Recognizing undLncouraging an Atmosphere 

of Community andof Hope 

Synovus covers markets throughout the Southeast 
— from metropolitan areas like Birmingham, Ala., 

to growing suburbs such as Peachtree City, Ga., 
and thriving resorts such as Hilton Head, S.C. 

Wherever you go, Synovus banks deliver quality ser­
vice with a personal touch to a wide variety of cus­

tomers with unique needs — individual, commercial, 
agricultural and governmental. 

by Design 
''Our comtnuuily-oriented. deeenlralized way of 
doin^ bu.sine.s.s prorides i^reater motivation and 

enlrepreneurial .spirit for the leam.s iu onr markets. 
We hare team mend)ers who rare about people — 

that's the .secret of the financial .services industry." 

— W. Luther Taylor, 
Pre.sident and Chief llveeulire Officer 

Hank of Peii.snrola 
Pensacola. Fltnida 
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ynovus is reaching out to new 

markets ... with a vision for the future. 

In 1995, Total System Servic 

which is 80.8 percent owned,— 

by Synovus, made a signifi­

cant international expansioi 

through its Mexican joint ver 

ture company. TSYS ca 

Mexico now serves more thcJ 

4 million cardholder anc 

100,000 merchant accounts 

TSYS also announced plans t( 

merge its merchant processinj 

operations with those of Visa 

U.S.A. The new company, Vitof 

Processing Services, will deliva 

fully-integrated merchant tronsac 

_ l - - i r - •_£ .• _ • i_ 
C;iC7V..II WniV. . N I I W I I M U I I I ^ M O d VH..CO IKJ M I I U I I \ . . I U I 

Global Growth 

institutions and their customers. 

1995 was also a year to refine and 

enhance TSYS' new card processing 

system, TS^ with First Omni Bank, N.A., 

as the first converted client. And TSYS 

entered a new niche business by helping 

United States Medical Finance Corporation 

offer its new medical payment card, the 

USMed card. 

Through its alliance with DynaMark, a 

subsidiary of Fair, Isaac and Co., Inc., 

TSYS will enable its clients to analyze the 

profitability of their accounts, more accu­

rately predict attrition and credit risk and 

perform more efficient target marketing of 

their cardholder base. This "alliance 

approach" is another TSYS first in the third-

party card processing industry. 

^ 

With the successful conversion of 19 banks in Mexico, TSYS has estab­
lished its first significant presence outside the U.S. Operating from a 
52,000-square-foot, state-of-the-art facility in Toluca, 35 miles west of 
Mexico City, TSYS de Mexico's clients represent more than 4 million card­
holder and 100,000 merchant accounts. 

Growth means new opportunities at TSYS, where more than 1,300 
people recently applied for 100 programmer analyst trainee positions. 
Following six months of training, the new trainees with college degrees 
wil l receive second degrees in applied computer science from Columbus 
College, Columbus, Go. Those without college degrees wil l receive 50 
hours of college credit. As TSYS grows and competes in a worldwide 
market, it wil l continue to need highly-skilled, well-trained programmers 
and other employees with leading-edge computer skills. 
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by Design 
Quality work, committed team members 

and attention to detail are the keys to 
success for TSYS. Round-the-clock monitoring 
of computer hardware and software made it 

possible for TSYS to process 251 million 
credit card transactions in 1995 — touching 

millions of customers and thousands of 
merchants around the world. 
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.reating people and companies like 

individuals — that's the Synovus approach 

to customer service. Whether you are a 

homeowner who needs a second mortgage 

or a business owner interested in cash man­

agement services, your needs are unique. 

You deserve the kind of personalized atten­

tion you'll find at Synovus. 

The commitment to delivering the highest 

quality customer service extends to all 

aspects of our business. To assist both affili­

ate banks and their customers, Synovus 

Securities, Inc., provides financial planning 

and investment services. Behind the scenes, 

the affiliate banks receive bank processing 

services from Synovus Data Corp. and mort­

gage services from Synovus Mortgage Corp. 

The modernization of many Synovus 

operational functions means enhanced 

service. In 1995, the creation of Synovus 

Trust Company improved frust, risk man­

agement and other service offerings for 

customers throughout the Synovus fami- , 

ly. Also formed in 1995, Synovus 

Administrative Services Corp. provides 

all affiliates consistent corporate sup­

port services. 

These moves are part of Synovus' 

corporate commitment to continuous 

improvement. 

For customers, they mean an ever-

improving level of customer service — 

and more responsive, personalized atten­

tion from dedicated, well-trained people. 

Customer 
Satisfaction... 

""Responsive local 
management made 
it pos.sible for the 

people at Vanguard 
Bank and Trust to 

help us 'weather the 
.storm' and rebuild 
our business after 

the hurricane. 
They are a terrific 
group of caring, 

dedicated people." 

— Phillip H. McNeill 
President, 

McNeill Hospitality Corp. 
Hampton lun 

Destin, Florida 

When Hurricane Opal slammed into the 
Gulf Coast in October, it devastated the 
property of homeowners and businesses. 
Lending officer Jim Mathis, Executive Vice 
President of Vanguard Bank and Trust of 
Valparaiso, Fla., worked with long-time 
customers like Destin, Fla., Hampton Inn 
Manager Rex Martin to help open their 
doors for business as quickly as possible. 

(fiartiptonj 
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Synovus University, Synovus' training and 
development center, uses role-playing and other 
advanced educational techniques to teach all team 
members — from the front line to the executive offices. 
With the company's enhanced service initiative and sales 
strategy, the focus of training is to give team members 
the tools they need to meet customers with knowledge 
and confidence. 

Starting as new recruits, many military personnel open accounts with 
Synovus banks — and remain customers for life. Our military banking 
program makes it possible for these soldiers to conduct business with 
Columbus Bank and Trust Company's Ft. Benning branch from anywhere in 
the world. Synovus banks have branch offices on or near 12 Army, Air 
Force, Navy and Marine Corps bases throughout the Southeast. 

• " 
>d^ 

^A 

'4 

• " • • 

^ 
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• " 
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by Design 
Whether in phone 

or in person, Synovus 
team members like 
Tiffany Grier, TSYS 

Merchant Client 
Services Manager, 

are committed to 
doing what it takes 

to exceed the 
expectations of our 
customers. We are 

dedicated to insuring 
that the customer is 
heard, assisted and 

satisfied in a prompt 
and professional 

manner. At Synovus, 
our business is all 

about service. 

\">-x!v>^^ -'••"'• 
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credit quality. An enhanced service 

and sales culture. Alternative banking 

options through technology with a personal 

touch. Modernized, stream­

lined "back-room" oper( 

tions. Strong investme' 

options. Selected acqui 

tions while continuing ; 

strengthen our bankins 

market shares. Contint. 

growth from TSYS. 

When you look ahead at, 

the future of Synovus, you'll 

see a kaleidoscope o 

opportunities. From the 

Gulf Coast to the Atlantic 

Coast, Synovus affiliate 

banks are helping spur th 

growth of communities imuuy,...... 

Southeast. And we'll continue to offer new 

' and better ways to do business in the years 

to come — in our offices and in your homes. 

Wherever you go, Synovus people are 

committed to delivering the highest quality 

service available with a unique personal­

ized spirit. And Synovus companies are 

' dedicated to constantly improving our finan­

cial and operational performance — year 

after year. 

A quality-oriented community banking 

organization. A leader in card processing 

technology. A performance-driven plan for 

growth through selective acquisitions and 

alliances. That's Synovus. 

Synovus' continuing modernization 
and platform automation efforts are 
putting the right tools in the hands of 
our customer contact team members. 
New information technology means 
greater efficiency in retrieving and 
completing forms and documentation, 
allowing customer service representa­
tives to focus on the customer — and 
not on the form. 

Synovus' alternotWe 
banking efforts inchade 

technology-based home 
banking options. Us'ng 
a standard or display 
phone, customers can 
Jay bills, transfer funds, 
check balances ond per­
form other functions. 
And coming soon: home 
banking via the personal 

computer. 
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The Synovus "Spirit" comes 
alive at our team meetings such as 

this 1995 meeting which featured 
John Naber, Olympic gold medalist 

and motivational speaker. During 
this meeting, John encouraged the 

team to achieve Gold Medal 
Performance® using his eight-step 
model for success. His message of 
"No Deposit: No Return" inspired 

the team to make the winning 
score in 1995. 

by Design 

\0\0 
X X 

"We're never .satisfied ivith the .status quo. 
We always want to continue growing, 

reaching out and e.vploring. High performance, 
.solid growth and outstanding quality — 

that's what we crpect as 
we move forward." 

— .James I). Yancey 
Vice Cluiirinau ofihe Board 

Synorus tinancial CfU'p. 

Dedicated to customer service with a 
passion for quality, Synovus employees such 
as these TSYS team members meet regularly 
to brainstorm, develop product strategies, 
troubleshoot and look for better ways to 
serve our customers. 

Gold Medal Performance© is a copyright of Naber antJ Associates, Inc. 
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Strong 
Leadership. 

GEORGIA BANKING 
Columbus Bank and Trust Company 
Columbus, Ga. 

Commercial Bank 
Thomasville, Ga. 

Commercial Bank and Trust Company 
LaGrange, Go. 

Security Bank and Trust Company 
Albany, Ga. 

Sumter Bank and Trust Company 
Americus, Ga. 

The Coastal Bank of Georgia 
Brunswick, Ga. 

First State Bank and Trust Company 
Valdosta, Ga. 

Bank of hlazlehurst 
Hazlehurst, Ga. 

Citizens Bank & Trust of West Ga. 
Carrollton, Ga. 

Cohutta Banking Company 
Chatsworth, Ga. 

Bank of Coweta 
Newnan, Ga. 

First Community Bank 
Tifton, Go. 

CB&T Bank of Middle Georgia 
Warner Robins, Ga. 

The National Bank of Walton County 
Monroe, Ga. 

Sea Island Bank 
Statesboro, Ga. 

Citizens First Bank 
Rome, Ga. 

Athens First Bank & Trust Company 
Athens, Ga. 

The Citizens Bank 
Fort Valley, Ga. 

The Citizens Bank of Cochran 
...Cochran, Go. 
Peachtree National Bank 
Peachtree City, Ga. 

zens & MerchantsiState 
D|>ugtasville, Ga," 

Bank 

Chief Executive 

Georgia Banking 

Samuel M. Wellborn, 

Frederick D. Jefferson 

Robert L. Carmichael, Jr 

Walter M. Deriso, Jr. 

Randy B. Jones, Jr. 

James R. Chaney 

J. Edward Norris, Jr 

Jack C. Floyd 

James A. Gill 

Edward E. Lewandowski % 

Donald C. Phillips 

John M. Davis 

R. Gary Bishop 

J. Keith Caude 

David H. Averitt 

Roger F. Smith 

James L. LaBooil^ 

Freddy C. Greer 

Billy E. Nails 

W. Ronald Duffey 

1 Sinetri L. Barber" 

Assets 
1 2 / 3 1 / 9 5 

(OOOs) 

$4,616,894 
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by Design 

Affiliate Chief Executive 

ALABAMA B A N K I N G 
Community Bank & Trust of Southeast Alabama 

Fort Rucker, Ala. 

CB&T Bank of Russell County 

Phenix City, Ala. 

First National Bank 

Jasper, Ala. 

First Commercial Bank 

Birmingham, Ala. 

The Bank of Tuscaloosa 

Tuscaloosa, Ala. 

Sterling Bank 

Montgomery, Ala. 

First Commercial Bank 

Huntsville, Ala. 

Assets 
1 2 / 3 1 / 9 5 

(OOOs) 

H. Lamar Loftin 

C. Samuel Howard, Jr. 

L. Gwaltney McCollum, Jr. 

Thomas A. Broughton, III 

James B. Flemming 

W. Alan Worrell 

Charles E. Kettle 

$ 119,259 

107,300 

378,790 

563,124 

155,804 

136,431 

m 

133,961 

Alabama Banking 

FLORIDA BANKING 
The Quincy State Bank 

Quincy, Fla. 

The Tallahassee State Bank 

Tallahassee, Fla. 

Vanguard Bank and Trust 

Valparaiso, Fla. 

Bank of Pensacola 

Pensacola, Fla. 

First Coast Community Bank 

Fernandina Beach, Fla. 

Florida Banking 

SOUTH CAROLINA BANKING 
The National Bank of South Caro l ina -

Columbia, S.C. 

OTHER COMPANIES 

iTotal System Services, Inc. 

Synovus Mortgage Corp 

Synovus Securities, Inc. 

Synovus Trust Company 

Synovus Administrative Services Coq 

Synovus Data Corp. 

,594,669 

W.C. Branson e 
W. Booker Moore, 

M. Gary RobertT 

W. Lut ier Taylor 

James M. Townsend 

William L. Plierigo 

Richard W. Ussery 

Paul D. Jones 

-©.Leonard Sextofi 

Georgte G. Flowers 

(enneth E. Evans 

Stev3nson Brice, Jr. 

$ 102,307 

-ms2̂  
2027^151 

100,586 

58,179 

5ry53,743 

$1,178,375 
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Senior 
Management 

James H. Blanchard 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

V\/illiam B. Turner 
Chairman of the Executive Committee 

John T. Oliver, Jr. 
Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee 

James D. Yancey 
Vice Chairman of the Board 

Joe E. Beverly 
Vice Chairman of the Board 

Richard E. An thony 
Vice Chairman of the Board 

16 

Directors 
Daniel P. Amos 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
AFLAC Incorporated 

Richard E. An thony 
Vice Chairman of the Board 
Synovus Financial Corp. 
Chairman of the Board 
First Commercial Bonk 

Joe E. Beverly 
Vice Chairman of the Board 
Synovus Financial Corp. 
Chairman of the Board 
Commercial Bonk 

Richard H. B ickers to f f " 
Consultant 
Boral Bricks, Inc. 

James H. Blanchard 
Chairman of the Board and 

Mason H. Lampton 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
The Hardaway Company 

John L. Moul ton 
Chairman of the Board 
Security Bank and Trust Company 
President 
Moulton, Lone and Hardin, Inc. 

Elizabeth C. Ogie 
Director 
W.C. Bradley Co. 

John T. Oliver, Jr. 
Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee 
Synovus Financial Corp. 
Chairman of the Board 
First National Bonk 

H. Lynn Page 
Vice Chairman of the Board (Retired] 

Stephen L. Burts, Jr. 
President and Chief Financial Officer 

G. Sanders Gr i f f i th , III 
Senior Executive Vice President, 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Thomas J. Prescott 
Executive Vice President and Treasurer 

Jay C. McClung 
Executive Vice President 

Credit Administration 

Charles G. Harbour 
Senior Vice President and Auditor 

Kathleen A. Mar t in 
Senior Vice President 

Modernization Director 

Kathleen Moates 
Senior Vice President 

Deputy General Counsel 

Lucius D. Mor ton 
Senior Vice President 
Loan Administration 

Robert W. Robbins 
Senior Vice President 

Product Sales 

Calvin Smyre 
Sen/or Vice President 

Assistant to the Chairman for Governmental Affairs 

Chief Executive Officer 
Synovus Financial Corp. 
Chairman of the Executive Committee 
Total System Services, Inc. 

Richard Y. Bradley 
Attorney at Lav/ 
Bradley & Hatcher 

Stephen L. Burts, Jr. 
President and Chief Financial Officer 
Synovus Financial Corp. 

Lovick P. Corn** 
Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee 
W. C. Bradley Co. 

Salvador Diaz-Verson, Jr. 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Diaz-Verson Capital Investments, Inc. 

C. Edward Floyd, M.D. 
Floyd Medical Associates, P.A. 

Gardiner W. Ga r ra rd , Jr. 
President 
The Jordan Company 

Roy M. Greene, Sr.** 
Chairman of the Board and President 
Greene Communications, Inc. 

V. Nathanie l Hansford 
Professor and Dean Emeritus 
University of Alabama School of Law 

John P. i l lges, i i l * 
Senior Vice President 
The Robinson-Humphrey Company, Inc. 

Synovus Financial Corp. 
Columbus Bank and Trust Company 
Total System Services, Inc. 

Wi l l i am L. Pherigo 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
The National Bank of South Carolina 

Robert V. Royal l , Jr. 
Chairman of the Board 
The National Bank of South Carolina 
Secretary of Commerce 
State of South Carolina 

Loyce W. Turner** 
Chairman of the Board 
First State Bank and Trust Company 
State Senator - Lowndes County 

Wi l l i am B. Turner 
Chairman of the Executive Committee 
Synovus Financial Corp. 
Chairman of the Board 
Columbus Bank and Trust Company 
Chairman of the Executive Committee 
W. C. Bradley Co. 
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Vice Chairman of the Board 
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** Emeritus Director 



ANNUAL REPORT 1995 

SYNOVUS* 
FINANCIAL CORP. 

FINANCIAL APPENDIX 

Consolidated Statements of Condition as of December 31, 1995 and 1994 F-2 

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993 F-3 

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years ended December 31,1995, 1994, and 1993 F-4 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years ended December 31,1995, 1994, and 1993 F-5 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies F-6 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-10 

Independent Auditors'Report F-26 

Financial Highlights F-27 

Financial Revievir F-28 

Summary of Quarterly Financial Data, Unaudited F-48 

F-l 



SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORR 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENIS OF CONDITION 
(In thousands, except share data) 

DecemberSI, 1995 1994 

ASSETS 
Cash and due from banks. Including cash deposits of $31,144 and $33,693 for 1995 and 1994, respectively, 

on deposit to meet Federal Reserve requirements $ 382,696 344,637 
Interest earning deposits with banks 1,093 1, 172 
Federal funds sold 123,832 43,907 
Investment securities available for sale (note 2) 1, 106,298 804,769 
Investment securities held to maturity (approximate market value of $386,579 

and $510,504 for 1995 and 1994, respectively) (notes 2 and 6) 380,918 532,933 
Loans (notes 3 and 6) 5,526,842 5,089,567 
Less: 

Unearned income (M,812) (14,691) 
Reserve for loan losses (note 3) (81,384) (75,018) 

Loans, net 5,430,646 4,999,858 

Premises and equipment, net (note 6) 220,197 203,106 
Other assets (notes 4 and 8) 281,915 245,697 

Totalassets $7,927,595 7,176,079 

LIABIUTIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Deposits (note 5): 
Non-interest bearing $ 1, 141,716 983,056 
Interestbearing 5,586,163 4,941,547 

Total deposits 6,727,879 5,924,603 

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to repurchase 229,477 412,082 
Long-term debt (note 6) 106,815 139,811 
Other liabilities (notes 7 and 8) 142,079 97,220 

TDtal liabilities 7,206,250 6,573,716 

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary 27,790 22,483 

Shareholders' equity (notes I, 2, 6,8, and 12): 
Common stock— $1.00 parvalue. Authorized 600,000,000 shares; issued 77,280,695 in 1995 and 76,134,451 

in 1994; outstanding 77,236,765 in 1995 and 75,633,387 in 1994 77,281 76,134 
Surplus 127,021 118,782 
Less treasury stock - 43,930 and 501,064 shares in 1995 and 1994, respectively (1,022) (7,680) 
Less unamortized restricted stock (2,663) (1,538) 
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities available for sale 5,774 (20,744) 
Retained earnings 487,164 414,926 

Total shareholders'equity 693,555 579,880 

Commitments (note 9) — — 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $7,927,595 7,176,079 

See accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements. 

F-2 



ANNUAL REPORT 1995 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OE INCOME 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Years ended December 31, 1995 IW4 1993 

Interest income: 
Loans, including fees $ 525,080 415,242 361,744 
Investment securities: 

U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies 59,866 
Mortgage-backed securities ./. 15,975 
State and municipal 7,397 
Other investments 1,357 

Federal funds sold 6,006 
Interest earning deposits with banks 107 

Total interest income 615,788 

Interest expense: 
Deposits (note 5) 253,761 
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to repurchase 12,092 
Long-term debt 8,060 

Totai interest expense 273,913 

Net interest income 341,875 
Provision for losses on loans (note 3) 25,787 

Net interest income after provision for losses on loans 316,088 

Non-interest income: 
Data processing services 236,125 
Service charges on deposit accounts 46,657 
Fees for trust services 9,649 
Credit card fees 7,288 
Securities gains (losses), net (note 2) 368 
Other operating income 40,747 

Total non-interestincome 340,834 
Non-interest expense: 

Salaries and other personnel expense (note 8) 252,479 
Net occupancy and equipment expense (notes 4 and 9) 99,629 
Other operating expenses (note 10) 120,012 
Minority interest in subsidiary's net income 5,333 

Total non-interest expense 477,453 

Income before income taxes and extraordinary item 179,469 
Income tax expense (note 7) 64,886 

Income before extraordinary item 114,583 

Extraordinary item-loss related to early extinguishment of debt (net of income tax benefit of $ 1,568)... — 

Net income $ 114,583 

Net income per share: 
Income before extraordinary item $ 1.50 

Extraordinary item — 

Netincome $ 1.50 

Weighted average shares outstanding 76,636 

See accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements. 

53,479 
17,456 
7,772 
1,611 
2,787 

35 

498,382 

176,919 
10,021 
10,211 

197,151 

301,231 
25,387 

275,844 

178,122 
41,447 
8,796 
7,703 
(721) 

38,985 

274,332 

211,531 
83,419 

111,975 
4,325 

411,250 

138,926 
49,474 

89,452 

— 

89,452 

1.19 

1.19 

75,167 

48,948 
17,671 
9,307 
2,875 
3,200 

127 

443,872 

164,644 
5,045 

10,970 

180,659 

263,213 
24,924 

238,289 

148,364 
39,160 
8,923 
7,493 
1,108 

31,214 

236,262 

180,414 
72,679 
94,258 

3,896 

351,247 

123,304 
42,925 

80,379 

2,912 

77,467 

1.09 
(.04) 

1.05 

74,009 
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SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORR 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQLITY 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Unamortized 
Shares Common Treasury Restricted 

Years ended December 31,1995,1994, and 1993 Issued Stock Surplus Stock Stock 

Balance at December 31,1992 66,842 $66,842 75,696 (2,974) (1,792) 
Issuance of common stock for acquisition 6,593 6,593 23,484 — (750) 
Issuance of common stock by pooled subsidiary prior to acquisition 1,269 1,269 11,724 — — 
Net income _ _ _ _ _ 
Cash dividends declared - $.373 per share _ _ _ _ _ 
Cash dividends of pooled subsidiary prior to acquisition _ _ _ _ _ 
Issuance of restricted stock 3 3 23 — (26) 
Amortization of restricted stock issued under restricted stock 

bonus plan (note 8) _ _ _ _ 746 
Amortization of subsidiary restricted stock bonus plan — — 497 — — 
Stock options exercised 196 196 1,258 — — 
Repayment of obligation of employee stock ownership plan at subsidiary — — — — 150 
Net unrealized gain on investment securities available for sale _ _ _ _ _ 
Purchase of fractional shares upon acquisition (2) (2) (58) — — 

Balance at December 31,1993 74,901 74,901 112,624 (2,974) (1,672) 
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions 1,097 1,097 3,656 — — 
Netincome _ _ _ _ _ 
Cash dividends declared - $.450 per share _ _ _ _ _ 
Cash dividends of pooled subsidiary prior to acquisition _ _ _ _ _ 
Treasury shares purchased ; _ _ _ (6,013) — 
Issuance of restricted stock 65 65 1,156 455 (1,676) 
Amortization of restricted stock issued under restricted stock 

bonus plan (note 8) — — — — 1,421 
Amortization of subsidiary restricted stock bonus plan — — 499 — — 
Stock options exercised 71 71 347 852 — 
Stock option tax benefit — — 692 — — 
Repayment of obligation of employee stock ov/nership plans at subsidiaries... _ _ _ _ 389 
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities available for sale _ _ _ _ _ 
Ownership change at majority-owned subsidiary — — (192) — — 

Balance at December 31,1994 76,134 76,134 118,782 (7,680) (1,538) 
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions 529 529 4,492 6,078 — 
Net Income _ _ _ _ — 
Cash dividends declared - $.540 per share _ _ — _ — 
Treasury shares purchased _ _ _ (1,303) — 
Issuance of restricted stock 90 90 1,964 — (2,054) 
Amort izat ion of restricted stock Issued under restricted stock 

bonus plan (note 8) — _ 493 _ 779 
Stock options exercised 226 226 459 1,883 — 
Repayment of obligation of employee stock ownership 

plan at subsidiary — — — — ISO 
Net unrealized gain on investment securities available for sale _ _ — _ — 
Ownership change at majority-owned subsidiary — — (^) ~ ~ 
Loss on foreign currency translation _ _ _ _ — 
Conversion of subordinated debentures into common stock 

(note 6) 302 302 835 _ _ - -

Balance at December 31,1995 77,281 $77,281 127,021 (1,022) (2,663) 

Net 
Unrealized 
Gain/(Los$) 

on Securities 
Avail, for Sale 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

I 

— 
— 
— 

11,643 
— 

11,643 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

_ 
— 
— 
— 
— 

(32387) 

— 

(20,744) 
183 

— 
— 
^ 

_ 
— 

^ 
26,335 

— 
— 

— 

5,774 

Retained 
Earnings 

278,235 
23,964 

— 
77,467 

(24,880) 
(2,311) 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

352,475 
5,802 

89,452 
(30,298) 
(2,708) 

_ 
— 
— 
— 
(26) 
229 
— 

414,926 
547 

114,583 
(42,042) 

^ 

_ 
— 

^ 
— 
— 

(850) 

-

487,164 

Total 

416,007 
53,291 
12,993 
77,467 

(24,880) 
..(2,311) 

746 
497 

1,454 
150 

11,643 
(60) 

546,997 
10,555 
89,452 

(30,298) 
(2,708) 
(6,013) 

1,421 
499 

1,270 
692 
363 

(32,158) 
(192) 

579,880 
11,829 

114,583 
(42,042) 

(1,303) 

1,272 
2,568 

ISO 
26,335 

(4) 
(850) 

1,137 

693,555 

See accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes t o consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS 
(In thousands) 

Years ended December 31, 1995 1994 1993 

Operating Activities 
Net income $ 114,583 89,452 77,467 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Extraordinary item - loss related to early extinguishment of debt, net — 
Provision for losses on loans 25,787 
Depreciation, amortization, and accretion, net 38,617 
Deferred income tax benefit (4,171) 
(Increase) decrease in interest receivable (9,973) 
Increase (decrease) in interest payable 14,680 
Minority interest in subsidiary's net income 5,333 
(Increase) decrease in mortgage loans held for sale (15,398) 
Other, net (17,009) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 152,449 

Investing Activities 
Cash acquired from acquisitions 4,431 
Net business aquisitions by subsidiary — 
Net decrease in interest earning deposits with banks 1,956 
Net (increase) decrease in federal funds sold (70,770) 
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available for sale 173,109 
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale 136,502 
Purchases of investment securities available for sale (394,406) 
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities held to maturity 82,837 
Proceeds from sales of investment securities held to maturity — 
Purchases of investment securities heid to maturity (92,966) 
Net increase in loans (385,228) 
Purchases of premises and equipment (48,212) 
Disposals of premises and equipment 1,888 
Proceeds from sale of other real estate 12,032 
Additions to internally developed computer software (2,617) 

Net cash used in investing activities (581,444) 

Financing Activities 
Net increase in demand and savings deposits 193,870 
Net increase in certificates of deposit 528,690 
Net (decrease) increase in federal funds purchased and securities 

sold under agreement to repurchase (182,870) 
Principal repayments on long-term debt (33,682) 
Extraordinary item - loss related to early extinguishment of debt, net — 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 1,823 
Purchase of treasury stock (1,303) 
Dividends paid to shareholders (42,042) 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2,568 

Net cash provided by financing activities 467,054 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 38,059 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 344,637 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $382,696 

See accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements. 

— 
25,387 
38,409 
(1,097) 
(6,701) 
7,316 
4,325 
13,944 
(3,122) 

167,913 

9,056 
— 
553 

137,464 
192,186 
182,972 
(347,177) 
87,943 

— 
(141,153) 
(566,101) 
(41,938) 
1,007 
9,078 

(10,624) 

(486,734) 

87,229 
135,539 

142,125 
(36,204) 

— 
17,006 
(6,013) 

(33,006) 
1,270 

307,946 

(10,875) 
355,512 
344,637 

2,912 
24,924 
32,843 
(1,062) 
2,775 
(1,868) 
3,896 

(11,665) 
(191) 

130,031 

30,362 
88,997 
IOO 

67,734 
24,182 
43,613 
(78,544) 
343,760 
33,803 

(566,335) 
(431,564) 
(52,885) 
9,645 
13,622 

(11,688) 

(485,198) 

279,355 
43,001 

122,457 
(86,446) 
(2,912) 
92,260 

— 
(27,191) 
14,447 

434,971 

79,804 
275,708 
355,512 
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SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORP. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Business Operations 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Synovus Financial Corp. (Parent Company) and its subsidiaries, all but one of which were 
wholly-owned at December 31,1995. Synovus has 34 wholly-owned bank affiliates predominantly involved in commercial banking activities and a wholly-owned 
broker/dealer company Total System Services, Inc. (TSYS), an 80.8% owned subsidiary, is a bankcard data processing company 

The consolidated revenues are primarily contributed from the banking operations, with TSYS' revenues contributing approximately one quarter of consol­
idated revenues. The banking operations revenues are earned in four southeastern states: Georgia (61%), Alabama (20%), South Carolina (11%), and Florida 
(8%). TSYS has two major customers which account for approximately 34% of their revenues. The remainder of TSYS' revenues are generated from customer 
institutions located in North America. 

Basis of Presentation 

In preparing the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assump­
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and rev­
enues and expenses for the period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the reserve for loan losses; the valuation of real 
estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans; and the disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities. In connection with the 
determination of the reserve for loan losses and the valuation of other real estate, management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties and 
properties collateralizing impaired loans. 

The accounting and reporting policies of Synovus Financial Corp. and subsidiaries (Synovus) conform, to generally accepted accounting principles and 
to general practices within the banking and technology industries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolida­
tion. The following is a description ofthe more significant of those policies. 

Cash Flow Information 

For the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993, income taxes of $68 million, $48 million, and $42 million, and interest of $259 million, $190 
million, and $183 million, respectively were paid. 

Loans receivable of approximately $9 million, $8 million, and $16 million were transferred to real estate acquired in settlement of loans during 1995, 
1994, and 1993, respectively. 

Investment securities held to maturity with an amortized cost of approximately $161 million, $5 million, and $791 million were transferred during 1995, 
1994, and 1993, respectively, to investment securities available for sale. 

Federal Funds Sold, Federal Funds Purchased, and Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase 

Federal funds sold, federal funds purchased, and securities sold under agreement to repurchase generally mature in one day 

Investment Securities 

Synovus classifies its securities into three categories: trading, available for sale, or held to maturity. Trading securities are bought and held principally for 
the purpose of selling them in the near term. Held to maturity securities are those securities for which Synovus has the ability and intent to hold until maturi­
ty All other securities not included in trading or held to maturity are classified as available for sale. 

Trading and available for sale securities are recorded at fair value. Held to maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost, adjusted for the amorti­
zation Or accretion of premiums or discounts. Unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are included in earnings. Unrealized gains and losses, net of 
the related tax effect, on securities available for sale are excluded from earnings and are reported as a separate component of shareholders' equity until 
realized. Transfers of securities between categories are recorded at fair value at the date of transfer Unrealized gains and losses are recognized in earnings 
for transfers into trading securities. Unrealized gains or losses associated with transfers of securities from held to maturity to available for sale are recorded 
as a separate component of shareholders' equity The unrealized gains or losses included in the separate component of shareholders' equity for a security 
transferred from available for sale to held to maturity are maintained and amortized into earnings over the remaining life of the security as an adjustment to 
yield in a manner consistent with the amortization or accretion of premium or discount on the associated security. 

A decline in the market value ofany available for sale or held to maturity security below cost that is deemed other than temporary results in a charge to 
earnings resulting in the establishment of a new cost basis for the security 

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to the yield using the effective interest method 
and prepayment assumptions. Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned. Realized gains and losses for securities classified as available for sale 
and held to maturity are included in earnings and are derived using the specific identification method for determining the amortized cost of securities sold. 

Gains and losses on sales of investment securities are recognized on the settlement date, based on the amortized cost of the specific security. The finan­
cial statement impact of settlement date accounting versus trade date accounting was immaterial. 
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Loans and Interest Income 

Loans are reported at principal amounts outstanding, less unearned income and the reserve for loan losses. 

First mortgage loans held for sale are reported at the lower of aggregate cost or market. No valuation allowances were required at December 31, 
1995 or 1994. 

Interest income on consumer loans, made on a discount basis, is recognized in a manner which approximates the level yield method. Interest income 
on substantially all other loans is recognized on a level yield basis. 

Loan fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and amortized over the terms of the loans using a method which approximates a level yield. 
Annual fees, net of costs, collected for credit cards are recognized on a straight-line basis over the period the fee entitles the cardholder to use the card. 

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as nonaccrual loans. Accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when 
reasonable doubt exists as to the full, timely collection of interest or principal or when they become contractually in default for 90 days or more 
as to either interest or principal, unless they are both well-secured and in the process of collection. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual 
status, previously accrued and uncollected interest for the fiscal year in which the loan is placed on nonaccrual status is charged to interest income on loans, 
unless management believes that the accrued interest is recoverable through the liquidation of collateral. Interest payments received on nonaccrual loans are 
applied as a reduction of principal. Loans are returned to accruing status only when they are brought fully current with respect to interest and principal and 
when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to both principal and interest. Such interest, when ultimately collect­
ed, is recorded as interest income in the period received. Interest on accruing impaired loans is recognized as long as such loans do not meet the criteria for 
nonaccrual classification. 

Reserve for Loan Losses 

Synovus adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan" as 
amended by SFAS No. 118, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures", on January 1,1995. Management, con­
sidering current information and events regarding the borrowers' ability to repay their obligations, considers a loan to be impaired when the ultimate collectibil­
ity of all amounts due, according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement, is in doubt. When a loan is considered to be impaired, the amount of impair­
ment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate. If the loan is collateral-dependent, 
the fair value of the collateral is used to determine the amount of impairment. Impairment losses are included in the reserve for loan losses through a charge to 
the provision for losses on loans. Subsequent recoveries are added to the reserve for loan losses. Prior periods have not been restated. 

SFAS No. 114 applies to all loans, except for large pools of smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment, loans that 
are measured at fair value or at the lower of cost or fair value, and debt securities. The reserve for loan losses for large pools of smaller balance homoge­
neous loans is established through consideration of such factors as changes in the nature and volume ofthe portfolio, overall portfolio quality, adequacy ofthe 
underlying collateral, loan concentrations, historical charge-off trends, and economic conditions that may affect the borrowers' ability to pay Loans are 
charged against the reserve for loan losses when management believes that the collection of principal is unlikely 

Management believes that the reserve for loan losses is adequate. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future 
additions to the reserve for loan losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral 
part of their examination process, periodically review Synovus' affiliate banks' reserve for loan losses. Such agencies may require Synovus' affiliate banks to 
recognize additions to the reserve for loan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. 

Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are reported at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, which are computed 
using straight-line or accelerated methods over the estimated useful life of the related asset. 

Other Assets 

Included in other assets are other real estate, originated and purchased mortgage servicing rights, intangibles, and computer software as described in the 
paragraphs below. 

Other Real Estate: 

Other real estate, consisting of properties obtained through foreclosure or in satisfaction of loans, is reported at the lower of cost or fair value, 
determined on the basis of current appraisals, comparable sales, and other estimates of value obtained principally from independent sources, adjusted for 
estimated selling costs. Any excess of the loan balance at the time of foreclosure over the fair value of the real estate held as collateral is treated as a loan 
charge-off. Gain or loss on sale and any subsequent adjustment to the value are recorded as a component of non-interest expense. 

Originated and Purchased Mortgage Servicing Rights: 

Effective July 1, 1995, Synovus adopted SFAS No. 122, "Accounting for Mortgage Servicing Rights", as an amendment to SFAS No. 65, "Accounting for 
Certain Mortgage Banking Activities". SFAS No. 122 requires that a mortgage banking enterprise recognize as separate assets, rights to service mortgage 
loans for others regardless of whether the servicing rights are acquired through either the purchase or origination of mortgage loans. SFAS No. 122 also . 
requires that capitalized mortgage servicing rights be evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of those rights, including those rights purchased 
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before adoption of SFAS No. 122. Fair value is estimated by determining the present value ofthe estimated future cash flows using discount rates commen­
surate with the risks involved. In determining the present value, Synovus stratifies its mortgage servicing rights based on risk characteristics including loan 
types, note rates, and note terms. 

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income, using a method that approxi­
mates level yield and taking into consideration prepayment of the underlying loans. Management re-evaluates the terms used for amortization based upon prepay­
ment history and adjusts the terms as necessary 

Intangibles; 

Goodwill, which represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired of purchased companies, is being amortized using the straight-
line method over periods of 15 to 40 years. 

Core deposit premiums resulting from the valuation of core deposit intangibles acquired in business combinations or in the purchase of branch offices 
are amortized using accelerated methods over periods not exceeding the estimated average remaining life of the existing customer deposit bases acquired. 
Amortization periods range from 10 to 18 years. 

Intangible amortization periods are monitored to determine if events and circumstances require such periods to be reduced. Goodwill and core deposit 
premiums are reviewed for impairment on the basis of whether these assets are fully recoverable from expected undiscounted cash flows of the related busi­
ness units. 

Computer Software: 

Software development costs are capitalized from the time technological feasibility of the software product or enhancement is established until the soft­
ware is ready for use in providing processing services to customers. Research and development costs and other computer software maintenance costs related 
to software development are expensed as incurred. Software development costs related to providing processing services to customers are amortized using the 
greater of the straight-line method over the estimated useful life or the ratio of current revenues to current and anticipated revenues. 

The carrying value of computer software costs is reviewed for impairment, and impairment is recognized when the expected undiscounted future cash 
flows derived from such intangible assets are less than their carrying value. 

Data Processing Services 

TSYS' bankcard data processing revenues are derived from long-term processing agreements with banks and nonbank institutions and are recognized as 
revenues at the time the services are performed. TSYS' processing agreements generally contain terms ranging from three to ten years. 

Income Taxes 

Synovus accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes". Under the asset and liability 
method of SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax 
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Under SFAS No. 109, the 
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 

Postretirement Benefits 

Synovus sponsors a defined benefit health care plan for substantially all employees and early retirees. Effective January 1, 1993, Synovus adopted SFAS 
No. 106, "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions", which established a new accounting principle for the cost of retiree 
health care and other postretirement benefits. Effective in 1993, the expected costs of such postretirement benefits are being expensed over the period that 
employees provide service. Prior to 1993, Synovus recognized these benefits on the pay-as-you-go method (i.e., cash basis). 

Net Income per Share 

Net income per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding. The effect of dilutive stock options on net income per 
share is insignificant. All share and per share data has been restated to reflect the March 1993 three-for-two stock split, which was effective on April I, 1993, 
in the form ofa 50% stock dividend. 

Disclosure About the Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments", requires all entities to disclose the fair value offinancial instruments, both assets 
and liabilities (on- and off-balance sheet), for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. 

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. 
These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale, at one time, Synovus' entire holdings of a particular financial 
instrument. Because no market exists for a portion of Synovus' financial instruments; fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected 
loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature 
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly 
affect the estimates. 
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Fair value estimates are based on existing on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future 
business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments. Significant assets and liabilities that are not considered financial 
instruments include deferred tax accounts, premises and equipment, and goodwill. In addition, the tax ramifications related to the realization ofthe unrealized 
gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in any of the estimates. 

The following summarizes the fair value of financial instruments at December 31, 1995 and 1994. 

(In thousands) Note 

Federal funds sold — 
Investment securities available for sale 2 
Investment securities held to maturity 2 
Loans, net unearned income 3 
Deposits 5 
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to repurchase 6 
Long-term debt 6 
Commitments 9 
Interest rate swaps 9 

Other 

Certain amounts in 1994 and 1993 have been reclassified to conform with presentation adopted in 1995. 

Recent Account ing Pronouncements 

On October 23, 1995, SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" was issued. SFAS No. 123 allows companies to retain the current 
approach set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees", for recognizing stock-based compensation 
expense in the basic financial statements; however, companies are encouraged to adopt a new accounting method based on the estimated fair value of employee 
stock options. Companies that do not follow the new fair value based method will be required to provide expanded disclosures in the footnotes. SFAS No. 123 
is effective for fiscal years ended December 31, 1996, and Synovus intends to provide such information in expanded disclosures in the footnotes. 

December 31,1995 

Carrying 

Value 

$ 123,832 
1,106,298 

380,918 
5,512,030 
6,727,879 

229,477 
106,815 

1,860,427 
— 

Fair 

Value 

123,832 
1,106,298 

386,579 
5,475,170 
6,732,584 

229,477 
105,874 

1,860,427 
1,776 

December 31, 1994 

Carrying 

Value 

43,907 
804,769 
532,933 

5,074,876 
5,924,603 

412,082 
139,811 

1,656,510 
— 

Fair 

Value 

43,907 
804,769 
510,504 

4,993,463 
5,915,483 

412,082 
129,658 

1,656,510 
— 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I Business Combinations 

On April 28, 1995, Synovus completed the acquisition of Citizens & Merchants Corporation (CMC), the parent company of the $52 million asset. Citizens 
& Merchants State Bank, Douglasville, Georgia. Synovus issued 626,469 shares of common stock for all the issued and outstanding shares of CMC. This transac­
tion has been accounted for as a pooling of interests, except that the financial statements for periods prior to the acquisition were not restated since the effect 
was not material. 

On February 28,1995, Synovus completed the acquisition of NBSC Corporation (NBSC), the parent company of the $ I. I billion asset. The National Bank 
of South Carolina, Columbia, South Carolina. Synovus issued 7,929,348 shares of common stock for all the issued and outstanding shares of NBSC. This acquisi­
tion has been accounted for as a pooling of interests and, accordingly, the financial statements for all periods presented have been restated to include the finan­
cial condition and results of operations of this entity. Synovus' financial statements for the years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993 have been restated for the 
NBSC acquisition as follows: 

1994 1993 

Before Before 
(In thousands, except per share data) Acquisition Restated Acquisition Restated 

Net interest income $259,502 301,231 229,063 263,213 

Income before extraordinary item $ 86,448 89,452 74,058 80,379 
Extraordinary item - loss related to eariy extinguishment of debt (net 

of income tax benefit of $1,568) — — 2,912 2,912 

Netincome $ 86,448 89,452 71,146 77,467 

Net income per share: 
Income before extraordinary item $ 1.29 1.19 l . l l 1.09 
Extraordinary item — — (.04) (.04) 

Netincome $ 1.29 1.19 1.07 1.05 

On January 31, 1995, Synovus completed the acquisition ofthe $43 million asset Peach State Bank (PSB), Riverdale, Georgia. Synovus issued 266,498 trea­
sury shares for all of the issued and outstanding shares of PSB. This acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. 

Effective October 31,1994, Synovus completed the acquisition of State Banchares, Inc. (SBI), the parent company of the $62 million asset. Coffee County 
Bank, Enterprise, Alabama. Synovus issued 548,879 shares of common stock for all of the issued and outstanding shares of SBI. This acquisition has been 
accounted for as a pooling of interests, except that financial statements for periods prior to the acquisition were not restated since the effect was not material. 

Effective May 31, 1994, Synovus completed the acquisition of PNB Bankshares, Inc. (PNB), the parent company of the $78 million asset, Peachtree 
National Bank, Peachtree City, Georgia. Synovus issued 548,213 shares of common stock for all of the issued and outstanding shares of PNB. This acquisition 
has been accounted for as a pooling of interests, except that the financial statements for periods prior to the acquisition were not restated since the effect was 
not material. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 2 Investment Securities 

The carrying and approximate market values of investment securities are summarized as follows: 

DecemberSI, 1995 
Investment Securities Available for Sale: 

Amortized 
(In thousands) Cost 

U. S. Treasury and U. S. Government agencies $ 996,129 
Mortgage-backed securities 87,741 
State and municipal 1,251 
Other investments 12,254 

Tbtal $1,097,375 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

10,466 
758 

72 
678 

11,974 

(2,309) 
(303) 

(I) 
(438) 

(3,051) 

1,004,286 
88,196 

1,322 
12,494 

1,106,298 

December 31, 1994 

Amortized 
(In thousands) Cost 

U. S. Treasury and U. S. Government agencies $ 798,990 
Mortgage-backed securities 24,819 
State and municipal 1,523 
Other investments 11,355 

Tbtal $ 836,687 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

286 
160 

741 

,187 

(31,732) 
(566) 

(32) 
(775) 

(33,105) 

767,544 
24,413 

1,491 
11,321 

804,769 

DecemberSI, 1995 
Investment Securities Held to Maturity: 

Amortized 
(In thousands) Cost 

U. S. Treasury and U. S. Government agencies $ 
Mortgage-backed securities 
State and municipal 
Other investments 

TDtal $^380,918 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

81,772 
171,275 
121,761 

6,110 

1,415 
1,629 
4,779 

37 

7,860 

(607) 
(1,477) 

(115) 

(2,199) 

82,580 
171,427 
126,425 

6,147 

386,579 

DecemberSI, 1994 

Amortized 
(In thousands) Cost 

U. S. Treasury and U. S. Government agencies $ 159,354 
Mortgage-backed securities 243,220 
State and municipal 121,834 
Other investments 8,525 

Tbtal $ ^ 532,933 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

24 
152 

1,893 
84 

2,153 

(9,326) 
(13,725) 

(1,531) 

(24,582) 

150,052 
229,647 
122,196 

8,609 

510,504 

Prior to January I, 1994, unrealized losses on mutual funds were included in retained earnings. However, these amounts, $229,000, have been reclassified 
and included in the net unrealized gain (loss) component of shareholders' equity effective December 31,1994. 

On December 21, 1995, Synovus exercised an option permitted by the "Special Report - a Guide to Implementation of FASB No. 115, Accounting for 
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities - Questions and Answers" to make a one time transfer of securities held to maturity to securities available for 
sale. This transfer was made to add further liquidity and flexibility to the portfolio that will enable Synovus to more effectively manage its interest rate risk posi­
tion. The amortized cost and estimated fair value of the securities transferred was $ 133.7 million and $ 133.9 million, respectively 

On February 28, 1995, immediately following the acquisition, Synovus transferred certain held to maturity securities of NBSC to the available for sale port­
folio to adhere to Synovus' existing asset-liability management policy and interest rate risk strategy. Such transfers consisted of investment securities with an esti­
mated fair value of $27.1 million and an amortized cost of $27.4 million. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 1995 and 1994, are shown below by contractual maturity. Expected 
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Investment Securities 
Held to Maturity 

December 31, 1995 

Amortized Estimated 
(In thousands) Cost Fair Value 

U. S. Treasury and U. S. Government Agencies: 
Within I yean $ 14,924 14,994 
I to 5 years 44,615 44,708 
5 to 10 years 22,233 22,878 
More than 10 years .-. — — 

$ 81,772 82,580 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
Within I yean $ 1,692 1,710 
I to 5 years 73,793 72,846 
5 to 10 years 22,174 22,465 
More than 10 years 73,616 74,406 

$171,275 171,427 

State and municipal: 
Within I year. $ 17,986 18,265 
I to 5 years 52,596 54,225 
5 to 10 years 35,218 36,717 
More than 10 years 15,961 17,218 

$121,761 126,425 

Other investments: 
Within I yean $ 98 99 
I to 5 years 1,832 1,869 
5 to 10 years 265 265 
More than 10 years 3,915 3,914 

$ 6,110 6,147 

Total investment securities: 
Within I year. $ 34,700 35,068 
I to 5 years 172,836 173,648 
5 to 10 years 79,890 82,325 
More than 10 years 93,492 95,538 

$380,918 386,579 

I nvestment Securities 
Available for Sale 

DecemberSI, 1995 

Amortized 
Cost 

241,142 
553,647 
200,840 

500 

996,129 

1,237 
34,702 
11,577 
40,225 

87,741 

299 
594 
IOO 
258 

1,251 

3,329 
3,005 
2,082 
3,838 

12,254 

246,007 
591,948 
214,599 
44,821 

1,097,375 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

241,688 
557,958 
204,131 

509 

1,004,286 

1,239 
34,612 
11,644 
40,701 

88,196 

298 
668 
98 

258 

1,322 

3,382 
3,325 
2,251 
3,536 

12,494 

246,607 
596,563 
218,124 
45,004 

1,106,298 

A summary of investment security sales transactions for 1995, 1994, and 1993 is as follows: 

Investment Securities Held to Maturity 

(In thousands) Proceeds 

1995 $ -
1994 -
1993 33,803 

Gross 
Realized 

Gains 

Gross 
Realized 
Losses 

Investment Securities Available for Sale 

Proceeds 

Gross 
Realized 

Gains 

Gross 
Realized 
Losses 

333 (69) 

136,502 
182,972 
43,613 

1,164 
957 
844 

(796) 
(1,678) 

Securities with a carrying value of $879,232,000 and $879,038,000 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively, were pledged to secure certain 
deposits as required by law. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3 Loans 

Loans outstanding, by classification, are summarized as follows: 
December 

1995 
Commercial: 

Commercial, financial, and agricultural $ 1,931,004 
Real estate-construction 578,712 
Real estate-mortgage 1,160,089 

Total commercial 3,669,805 
Retail: 

Real estate-mortgage 824,998 
Installment loans-credit card 222,204 
Installment loans-other 784,972 
Mortgage loans held for sale 24,863 

Tbtal retail 1,857,037 

Tbtal loans $5,526,842 

31, 

1994 

1,783,928 
472,131 

1,030,524 

3,286,583 

865,642 
171,475 
756,402 

9,465 

1,802,984 

5,089,567 

Activity in the reserve for loan losses is summarized as follows: 

(Inthousands) 1995 

Balance at beginning of year $75,018 
Loan loss reserves of acquired subsidiaries 1,001 
Provision for losses on loans 25,787 
Recoveries of loans previously charged off 4,510 
Loans charged off (24,932) 

Balance at end of year $ 81,384 

1994 1993 

67,270 
1,535 

25,387 
5,874 

(25,048) 

75,018 

61,336 
— 

24,924 
4,767 

(23,757) 

67,270 

As discussed in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Synovus adopted SFAS No. 114 and SFAS No. 118 effective January I, 1995. No adjust­
ment to the loan loss reserve was needed upon adoption of SFAS No. 114 and SFAS No. 118. The table below illustrates the impaired loans and related 
amounts included in the reserve for loan losses at December 31,1995. 

Loan 
(In thousands) Balance 

Impaired loans, nonaccruing, with loan loss reserve $ 13,083 
Impaired loans, nonaccruing, with no loan loss reserve 7,151 
Impaired loans, accruing, with loan loss reserve 35,833 
Impaired loans, accruing, with no loan loss reserve ; 23,735 
Impaired loans, accruing, partially charged off 329 

Tbtal $ 80,131 

Allocated 
Loan Loss 
Reserve 

5,619 

13,255 

62 

18,936 

F-13 



SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORR 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

These loan loss reserve amounts were primarily determined using the fair value of the loans' collateral. The average recorded investment in impaired 
loans was approximately $87,000,000 for the year ended December 31, 1995 and the related amount of interest income recognized during the period that 
such loans were impaired was approximately $5,695,000. 

Loans on nonaccrual status amounted to approximately $21,469,000, $26,497,000, and 30,296,000 at December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 
If nonaccruing loans had been on a full accruing basis, interest income on these loans would have been increased by approximately $2,606,000, $2,931,000, 
and $2,632,000 in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 

A substantial portion of Synovus' loans are secured by real estate in markets in which affiliate banks are located throughout Georgia, Alabama, South 
Carolina, and Northwest Florida. Accordingly, the ultimate collectibility of a substantial portion of Synovus' loan portfolio and the recovery of a substantial por­
tion ofthe carrying amount of real estate owned are susceptible to changes in market conditions in these areas. 

At December 31, 1995, an affiliate company serviced mortgage loans for unaffiliated investors in the amount of $664,931,000. This company carries 
error and omissions insurance in the amount of $ 1,000,000. Synovus records servicing fee income on these loans based upon the outstanding balance of the 
loans serviced. 

The following table presents information for mortgage loans held for sale as of December 31, 1995 and 1994: 

December 31, 

(In thousands) 1995 1994 

Beginningbalance $ 9,465 23,409 
Loans originated during the year 213,645 210,056 
Loans sold during the year (198,247) (224,000) 

Ending balance $ 24,863 9,465 

Fair value of loans is estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated by type, such as commercial, mortgage, 
home equity, credit card, and other consumer loans. Fixed rate commercial loans are further segmented into certain collateral code groupings. Commercial 
and other consumer loans with adjustable interest rates are assumed to be at fair value. Mortgage loans are further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate 
interest terms. Home equity and credit card loans have adjustable interest rates and are, therefore, assumed to be at fair value. The fair value of loans, except 
mortgage loans, is calculated by discounting contractual cash flows using estimated market discount rates which reflect the credit and interest rate risk inher­
ent in the loan. For mortgage loans, fair value is estimated by discounting contractual cash flows adjusted for certain prepayment assumptions, estimated using 
discount rates based on secondary market sources adjusted to reflect differences in servicing and credit costs. 

The following table presents information for the fair value of loans as of December 31, 1995 and 1994: 

1995 1994 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 

(Inthousands) Amount FairValue Amount FairValue 

Adjustable rate loans, net of unearned income $3,197,420 3,239,448 2,730,818 2,727,760 
Fixed rate loans, net of unearned income 2,314,610 2,235,722 2,344,058 2,265,703 

In the ordinary course of business, Synovus has direct and indirect loans outstanding to certain executive officers, directors, and principal holders of 
equity securities (including their associates). Management believes that such loans are made substantially on the same terms, including interest rate and collat­
eral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other customers. The following is a summary of such loans outstanding and the activities 
in these loans for the year ended December 31, 1995 (in thousands). 

Balance at December 31, 1994 $ 135,645 
Adjustment for executive officer and director changes (9,399) 

Adjusted balance at December 31, 1994 126,246 
New loans 66,482 
Repayments (65,310) 

Balance at December 31, 1995 $ 127,418 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 4 Other Assets 

Included in other assets are two significant balances; purchased and originated mortgage servicing rights, and computer software costs. 

Synovus adopted SFAS No. 122 as ofJuly I, 1995 and has capitalized all mortgage servicing rights since the adoption date. As of December 31, 1995, 
Synovus had approximately $8,569,000 in capitalized mortgage servicing rights, the fair value of which was approximately $9,844,000 and, at year end 1995, 
there was no valuation allowance. 

The following table summarizes TSYS' computer software at December 31, 1995 and 1994: 

(Inthousands) 1995 1994 

TŜ  $33,049 33,049 

Other internally developed software, including enhancements to TŜ  5,346 3,804 
Purchased computer software 17,138 11,781 

55,533 48,634 
Less accumulated amortization 16,317 9,394 

Computer software, net $39,216 39,240 

Capitalized software development costs, related to the bankcard data processing, for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993 were 
$2,617,000, $10,624,000, and $11,688,000, respectively Amortization expense related to computer software costs was $7,358,000, $3,669,000 and 
$2,175,000 for the years ended December 31,1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 

Note 5 Deposits 

In accordance with SFAS No. 107, the fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as non-interest bearing demand accounts, interest bearing 
demand deposits, money market accounts, and savings accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand as of that respective date. The fair value of time 
deposits is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar 
remaining maturities. The following table presents fair value information on deposits as of December 31, 1995 and 1994: 

1995 1994 

Carrying 
|ln thousands) Value 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

1,141,716 
932,351 
925,861 
465,491 

3,267,165 

Carrying 
Value 

983,056 
911,869 
843,619 
485,989 

2,700,070 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

983,056 
911,869 
843,619 
485,989 

2,690,950 

Non-interest bearing demand deposits $ 1, 141,716 
Interest bearing demand deposits 932,351 
Money market accounts 925,861 
Savings accounts 465,491 
Time deposits 3,262,460 

$6,727,879 6,732,584 5,924,603 5,915,483 

Time deposits over $100,000 at December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993, were $1,023,900,000, $804,936,000, and $688,332,000, respectively Interest 
expense for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993 on these large denomination deposits was $57,259,000, $31,865,000, and $27,605,000, 
respectively 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 6 Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consists ofthe following 
DecemberSI, 

(Inthousands) 1995 1994 

Parent Company: 

6.125% senior notes, due October 15,2003, with semi-annual interest payments and principal to be paid at maturity $ 75,000 75,000 

9.50% promissory notes, due October 31, 1995, with interest due monthly — 13,000 

Unsecured revolving credit agreement, due May 1, 1995, with interest due quarterly at .50% below the prime rate — 12,500 

8.75% Debenture, due May 15,2004, with annual principal payments of $ 120,000 and $ 1,600,000 at maturity 2,440 2,560 

Total Parent Company Debt 77,440 103,060 

Subsidiaries: 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances with monthly interest payments and principal payments due at various 
maturity dates through 2004 and interest rates ranging from 5.03% to 5.90% at December 31, 1995 26,300 34,140 

12.00% mandatory convertible subordinated debentures, due August 19, 1995, with interest payments 
due semi-annually (See details below regarding conversion) — 1, 137 

9.23% note payable, due October 31,2003, with annual principal and interest payments 348 376 

8.00% capital lease obligation payable, due in monthly principal and interest payments through 2002 274 301 

Other notes payable and capital lease obligations payable, with a weighted average interest 
rate of 5.44%, maturing at various dates through 2000 2,453 797 

Total Subsidiaries Debt 29,375 36,751 

Total Long-Term Debt $106,815 139,811 

The more significant debt agreements held by the Parent Company provide for certain limitations on: payments of cash dividends, issuance of additional 
debt, creation of liens upon property disposition of common stock or assets, and investments in subsidiaries. As of December 31,1995, the most restrictive 
of these allow for the payment of cash dividends up to a maximum of $ 114,583,000. 

The Federal Home Loan Bank advances are secured by certain mortgage loans receivable as well as all of the stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank 
owned by Synovus. 

Mandatory convertible subordinated debentures of $ 1, 137,280 matured on August 19, 1995. In accordance with the terms of these debentures, Synovus 
issued 301,886 shares of common stock to extinguish the debentures. 

The capital lease obligations payable and certain notes payable are secured by land, buildings, and equipment with a net carrying value at December 31, 
1995, of approximately $829,000. 

Synovus has an unsecured line of credit, with an unaffiliated bank, for $20 million with an interest rate of 50 basis points above the "short-term index", as 
defined. There were no advances on this line of credit outstanding at any time in the years ended December 31, 1995 or 1994. 

Required annual principal payments on long-term debt for the five years subsequent to December 31,1995, are as follows: 

(In thousands) 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Parent 
Company 

$120 
120 
120 
120 
120 

Subsidiaries 

12,503 
8,104 
7,079 

382 
307 

Total 

12,623 
8,224 
7,199 

502 
427 

F-16 



ANNUAL REPORT 1995 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Short-term and long-term debt with adjustable interest rates are assumed to be at fair value. Short-term debt that matures within ten days is also 
assumed to be at fair value. The fair value of short-term and long-term debt with fixed interest rates is calculated by discounting contractual cash 
flows using estimated market discount rates. The following table presents fair value information on short-term and long-term debt as of 
DecemberSI, 1995and 1994: 

1995 1994 

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
(Inthousands) Amoun t FairValue Amount FairValue 

Long-term debt with adjustable interest rates $ — — 12,500 12,500 
Long-term debt with fixed interest rates 106,815 105,874 127,3 II 117,158 

Note 7 Income Taxes 

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income before extraordinary item consists of: 

(In thousands) [995 [994 1993 

Currently payable: 
Federal $65,009 46,304 39,634 
State 4,048 4,267 4,353 

69,057 50,571 43,987 
Deferred: 

Federal (3,792) (997) (989) 
State (379) (IOO) (73) 

(4,171) (1,097) (1,062) 
Total income taxes $64,886 49,474 42,925 

Income tax expense attributable to income before extraordinary item differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate 
of 35% to pretax income before extraordinary item as a result of the following: 

(Inthousands) 1995 1994 1993 

Taxes at statutory federal income tax rate $62,814 48,624 43,156 
Tax-exempt income (2,956) (3,654) (4,287) 
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 2,385 2,709 2,782 
Minority interest 1,867 1,514 1,364 
Other, net 776 281 (90) 

Total income tax expense $64,886 49,474 42,925 

Effective tax rate 36.15% 35.61 34.81 

The significant components of deferred income tax expense for the years ended December 31,1995 and 1994 are as follows: 

(Inthousands) 1995 1994 1993 

(Decrease) increase in net tax benefit (exclusive of the components listed below) $(9,065) 17,339 208 
Adjustments to deferred income tax assets and liabilities for enacted tax rate change — 240 786 
Change in valuation allowance (418) 406 95 
Change in deferred income tax assets and liabilities related to net unrealized gain (loss) 

on securities available for sale 13,788 (16,555) (27) 
Deferred tax assets of acquired companies (134) (333) — 

$4,171 1,097 \M 
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions ofthe deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 1995 and 
1994 are presented below: 

(In thousands) 1995 1994 

Deferred income tax assets: 

Provision for losses on loans $32,244 28,406 
Net unrealized loss on investment securities available for sale — 10,638 
Other 11,610 8,857 

Total gross deferred income tax assets 43,854 47,901 
Less valuation allowance (383) (801) 

Net deferred income tax assets 43,471 47,100 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 

Differences in depreciation (6,220) (5,134) 

Restricted stock awards (1,206) (1, 163) 
Computer software development costs (14,958) (13,050) 
Net unrealized gain on investment securities available for sale (3,150) — 
Pension : (241) (2,111) 
Purchase accounting adjustments (1,338) (1,593) 
Othen net (7,791) (6,417) 

Total gross deferred income tax liabilities (34,904) (29,468) 
Net deferred income tax assets $ 8,567 17,632 

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 1995 and 1994 was $383,000, and $801,000, respectively The net change in the 
total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 was a decrease of $418,000 and an increase of $406,000, respectively In assessing 
the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be 
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those tempo­
rary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning 
strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which 
the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that Synovus will realize the benefits of these deductible differences, net 
of the existing valuation allowances, at December 31,1995. 

Note 8 Employee Benefit Plans 

In 1994 and 1993, Synovus had noncontributory, trusteed pension plans (collectively referred to as "Plan") covering substantially all employees over lO'A 
years of age. Total pension expense recorded in the accompanying financial statements was approximately $1,516,000 and $1,182,000, in 1994 and 1993, 
respectively 

In 1995, Synovus terminated the Plan and began to settle the benefit obligations. During the year ended December 31,1995, approximately $ 15,849,000 
of the accumulated benefit obligation was settled with a loss on settlement of $3,195,000. The remaining obligations will be settled in 1996 with an expected 
loss on settlement of approximately $600,000. 

In 1995, Synovus adopted a 7% defined-contribution, money purchase plan to replace the terminated pension plan above. In addition, Synovus generally 
provides noncontributory trusteed, profit sharing and 401 (k) plans which cover all eligible employees. Annual discretionary contributions to these profit shar­
ing and 401 (k) plans are set each year by the respective Boards of Directors of each affiliate, but cannot exceed amounts allowable as a deduction for federal 
income tax purposes. Aggregate contributions to these money purchase, profit sharing, and 401 (k) plans were $23,238,000, $12,853,000, and $12,107,000, in 
1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 

Synovus has stock purchase plans for directors and employees whereby Synovus makes contributions equal to one-half of employee and 
director voluntary contributions. The funds are used to purchase outstanding shares of Synovus common stock. TSYS has established director and employee 
stock purchase plans, modeled after Synovus' plans, except that the funds are used to purchase outstanding shares of TSYS common stock. Synovus and TSYS 
contributed $2,623,000, $ 1,949,000, and $ 1,552,000 to these plans in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 
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Year plan 
adopted 

1990 
1992 
1994 
1995 

Market value 
at award date 

$ 185,000 
1,576,000 

870,000 
2,054,000 

Synovus has entered into employment agreements with certain executive officers for past and future services which provide for current compensation 
in addition to salary in the form of deferred compensation payable at retirement or in the event of death, total disability or termination of employment. The 
estimated present value of the deferred compensation is being accrued over the remaining expected term of active employment. Aggregate Compensation 
expense under the foregoing employment agreements, together with the cost of salary continuation plans for certain other officers, was approximately 
$260,000, $460,000, and $377,000 in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 

Synovus provides certain medical benefits to qualified retirees through a postretirement medical benefits plan. The benefit expense and accrued benefit 
cost are not material to Synovus' consolidated financial statements. 

Under key executive restricted stock bonus plans, Synovus has awarded an aggregate of 232,732 non-transferable, restricted shares of Synovus common 
stock to various key executives. The market value of the common stock at the date of issuance is included as a reduction of shareholders' equity in the con­
solidated statements of condition and is amortized as compensation expense using the straight-line method over the vesting period of the awards. Aggregate 
compensation expense with respect to the foregoing restricted stock awards was approximately $779^000, $ 1,421,000, and $746,000 in 1995, 1994, and 1993, 
respectively 

Yoar n h n tvl-ari/of w-siiio 

Vesting period 

5 years 
4 years 
5 years 
5 years 

TSYS has awarded 653,400 non-transferable, restricted shares of its common stock to various key executives under restricted stock bonus plans. The 
aggregate market value of the shares is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the awards. The amounts and terms of common 
stock issued under restricted stock bonus awards are summarized as follows: 

Year plan Market value 
adopted at award date Vesting period 

1985 $ 228,125 10 years 
1990 165,886 70 months 
1992 1,801,250 6 years 
1992 1,332,800 5 years 

Under the various stock option plans, Synovus has granted options for 2,256,264 shares of common stock to officers of Synovus and its affiliates. 
Synovus has expensed $1,016,000, $1,129,000, and $1,074,000 in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively related to the compensation element ofthese plans. At 
December 31,1995, unamortized deferred compensation expense of $2,239,000 related to these options remained and will be amortized over the vesting 
period through 1997. The options outstanding at December 31,1995, had an average price of $ 15.17. 

Additional information relating to these stock options is as follows: 

1995 1994 1993 

Options outstanding at beginning of period 1,876,888 1,584,344 1,462,687 
Options granted 825,124 542,177 334,279 
Options exercised (436,410) (177,409) (212,622) 
Options cancelled (9,338) (72,224) -

Options outstanding at end of period 2,256,264 1,876,888 1,584,344 

Options exercisable at end of period 741,356 589,142 491,291 

Options' prices per share: 

Options granted during the period $9.74 t o 22.75 7.14 to 19.12 9.72 to 10.67 

Options exercised during the period $4.55 t o 11.70 4.12 to 10.83 3.93 to 15.23 

Options outstanding at end of period $4.55 t o 22.75 4.55 to 19.12 3.93 to 15.23 
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Note 9 Commitments 

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments 

Synovus is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers, 
reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and to conduct lending activities. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, 
standby and commercial letters of credit, and interest rate swaps. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in 
excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. 

Synovus' exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and 
standby and commercial letters of credit is represented by the contract amount of those instruments. Synovus uses the same credit policies in making com­
mitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. For interest rate swap agreements held at year end, Synovus had insignifi­
cant credit risk. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. 
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are 
expected to expire without being drawn upon, total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. 

Loan commitments and letters of credit at December 31, 1995 and 1994 include the following: 

(Inthousands) 1995 1994 

Standby letters ofcredit $ 255,230 192,162 
Undisbursed construction loans 316,139 269,549 
Unused credit card lines 552,831 557,270 
Other loan commitments 700,227 624,029 
Commitments to sell mortgage loans 36,000 13,500 

Total $1,860,427 1,656,510 

Interest rate swap transactions generally involve the exchange of fixed and floating rate interest payment obligations without the exchange of the under­
lying principal amounts. Entering into interest rate swap agreements involves not only the risk of dealing with counterparties and their ability to meet the 
terms of the contracts, but also the interest rate risk associated with hedged positions. Notional principal amounts often are used to express the volume of 
these transactions, but the amounts potentially subject to credit risk are much smaller . 

In October of 1995, Synovus and its subsidiary bank, Columbus Bank and Trust Company, entered the interest rate swap market for interest rate risk 
management purposes. The consolidated notional amount of interest rate swap contracts is $125,000,000 with no carrying amount and an estimated fair 
value of $ 1,776,000 at December 31,1995. 

These interest rate swaps have been entered into to convert floating rate assets to fixed rate assets. The weighted average fixed rate is 5.98% and the vari­
able rate, based on three month LIBOR, was 5.88% at December 31, 1995, with contract maturities in October 1999. 

Lease Commitments 

Synovus has entered into long-term operating leases for various branch locations, data processing equipment, and furniture. Management expects that, 
as these leases expire, they will be renewed or replaced by other leases. At December 31,1995, minimum rental commitments under all such noncanceUable 
leases aggregated $84,296,000 of which the following approximate amounts are due for the next five years: 

(In thousands) 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Rental expense on equipment, including cancellable leases, was $33,445,000, $25,111,000, and $21,716,000 in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively Rental 
expense on facilities was $6,144,000, $5,586,000, and $4,659,000 in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 

Real 
Property 

$5,136 
4,253 
3,650 
2,999 
2,632 

Equipment 
and 

Furniture 

26,253 
22,484 
5,203 
3,919 
1,453 

Total 

31,389 
26,737 
8,853 
6,918 
4,085 
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C o n t r a c t C o m m i t m e n t s 

In the normal course of its business, TSYS maintains processing agreements with its customers. These processing agreements contain contractual com­
mitments, including, but not limited to, minimum standards and time frames against which TSYS' performance is measured. In the event TSYS does not meet 
its contractual commitments with its customers, TSYS may incur penalties and/or certain customers may have the right to terminate their agreements with 
TSYS. TSYS does not believe that it will fail to meet its contractual commitments to an extent that will result in a material adverse effect on its financial condi­
tion or results of operations. 

Legal Proceedings 

Synovus is subject to various legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of its business. Any litigation is vigorously defended by 
Synovus and, in the opinion of management, based on consultation with external legal counsel, any outcome of such litigation would not materially affect 
Synovus' consolidated financial position. 

Currently multiple lawsuits, some seeking class action treatment, are pending against one of Synovus' Alabama banking subsidiaries that involve: ( I ) the 
sale of credit life insurance made in connection with consumer credit transactions; (2) payments of service fees or interest rebates to automobile dealers in 
connection with the assignment of automobile credit sales contracts to that Synovus subsidiary; and (3) the forced placement of insurance to protect that 
Synovus subsidiary's interest in collateral for which consumer credit customers have failed to obtain or maintain insurance. These lawsuits seek unspecified 
damages, including punitive damages, and some purport to be class actions which, if certified, may involve many of such subsidiary's consumer credit transac­
tions in Alabama for a number of years. Synovus intends to vigorously contest these lawsuits and all other litigation to which Synovus and its subsidiaries are 
parties. Based on information presently available, and in light of legal and other defenses available to Synovus and its subsidiaries, contingent liabilities arising 
from the threatened and pending litigation are not considered material. It should be noted, however, that large punitive damage awards, bearing little relation 
to the actual damages sustained by plantiffs, have been awarded in Alabama. 

N o t e 10 Supp lementa l Financial Da ta 

Components of other operating expenses in excess of I % of total revenues for any of the respective periods are as follows: 

(In thousands) [995 1994 1993 

Stationery printing, and supplies $23,692 19,552 16,240 
FDIC insurance 7,849 12,742 11,450 
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Note 11 Industry Segments 

Synovus operates principally in the banking industry through its affiliate banks and broker/dealer company Synovus also operates in the 

computerized data processing industry through its majority-owned subsidiary, TSYS, which provides bankcard data processing for unaffiliated 

financial institutions and for Synovus. All inter-segment services provided are charged at the same rates as unaffiliated customers, are included in the revenues 

and net income of the respective segments, and are eliminated to arrive at consolidated totals. 

Industry segment information for the years ended December 31,1995, 1994, and 1993 is presented below. 

(In thousands) 

Revenues 1995 

1994 

1993 

Net income 1995 

1994 

1993 

Identifiable assets 1995 

1994 

1993 

Capital expenditures (c) 1995 

1994 

1993 

Depreciation and amortization on premises, 

equipment, and purchased software 1995 

1994 

1993 

Banking 

$ 709,774 

586,917 

529,722 

105,692 

83,983 

76,364 

7,719,615 

6,989,998 

6,508,231 

22,835 

19,117 

30,786 

13,999 

12,871 

11,834 

Data 

Processing 

249,708 

187,571 

152,074 

27,730 

22,490 

20,223 

199,000 

165,042 

133,339 

25,108 

22,501 

21,630 

17,126 

13,472 

12,556 

General 

Corporate 

— 

(13,506) 

(12,696) 

(15,224) 

51,478 

55,111 

34,267 

269 

320 

469 

332 

365 

280 

Eliminations 

(2,860)(a) 

(1,774) (a) 

(1,662) (a) 

(5,333)(b) 

(4,325) (b) 

(3,896) (b) 

(42,498) 

(34,072) 

(19,663) 

= 

— 

Consolidated 

956,622 

772,714 

680,134 

114,583 

89,452 

77,467 

7,927,595 

7,176,079 

6,656,174 

48,212 

41,938 

52,885 

31,457 

26,708 

24,670 

(a) Principally data processing service revenues provided to the banking segment. 

(b) Minority interest in the data processing segment. 

(c) Excludes expenditures related to data processing subsidiary's capitalization of internal software development costs. 
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Note 12 Condensed Financial Information of Synovus Financial Corp. (Parent Company only) 

Condensed Statements of Condition 

(In thousands) 

December 31, 1995 

Assets 

Cash $ 47 

Investment in consolidated bank subsidiaries, at equity 736,379 
Investment in consolidated nonbank subsidiaries, at equity 6,775 
Notes receivable from subsidiaries 27,853 
Otherassets 24,040 

Tbtal assets $795,094 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

Long-term debt $ 77,440 

Other liabilities 24,099 

Total liabilities 101,539 

Shareholders' equity: 

CommonStock 77,281 
Surplus 127,021 
Less treasury stock (1,022) 
Less unamortized restricted stock (2,663) 
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities available for sale 5,774 
Retained earnings 487,164 

Total shareholders'equity 693,555 
Total liabilities and shareholders'equity $795,094 

1994 

239 
639,801 

4,874 
24,288 
33,069 

702,271 

103,060 
19,331 

122,391 

76,134 
118,782 

(7,680) 
(1,538) 

(20,744) 
414,926 

579,880 

702,271 
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Condensed Statements of Income 

(In thousands) 

Years ended December 31, 1995 

Income: 

Dividends received from bank subsidiaries $ 76,464 
Dividends received from nonbank subsidiaries — 
Management fees 2,511 
Interest income 2,149 
Otherincome 2,616 

Total income 83,740 

Expenses: 
Interest expense 6,046 
Other expenses 23,904 

Total expenses 29,950 

Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 53,790 

Allocated income tax benefit (9^246) 

Income before equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 63,036 
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 51,547 

Income before extraordinary item 114,583 
Extraordinary item - loss related to early extinguishment of debt (net of income tax benefit of $ 1,568) — 

Netincome $114,583 

1994 1993 

72,800 
300 

3,586 
1,425 
2,330 

80,441 

6,874 
19,758 

26,632 

53,809 

(6,931) 

60,740 
28,712 

89,452 
— 

89,452 

46,407 
733 

3,273 
546 

1,851 

52,810 

6,983 
17,103 

24,086 

28,724 

(3,585) 

32,309 
48,070 

80,379 
2,912 

77,467 
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
(In thousands) 

Years ended December 31, [995 [994 1993 

Operating Activities 
Net income $ 114,583 89,452 77,467 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (51,547) (28,712) (48,070) 
Net income of equity method investment (78) (337) (329) 
Extraordinary item - loss related to early extinguishment of debt, net — — 2,912 
Depreciation, amortization, and accretion, net 739 1,312 1,326 
Net increase in other liabilities 5,723 5,474 5,383 
Net decrease (increase) in other assets 8,799 (10,632) (1,047) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 78,219 56,557 37,642 

Investing Activities 
Net investment in subsidiaries (9,835) (11,005) (22,180) 
Cash from merged parent company operations 515 — — 
Net decrease (increase) in notes receivable from subsidiaries 1,200 1,700 (400) 
Net increase in short-term notes receivable from subsidiaries (4,765) (6,907) (11,481) 
Purchase of premises and equipment, net (266) (301) (913) 

Net cash used in investing activities (13,151) (16,513) (34,974) 

Financing Activities 
Dividends paid to shareholders (42,042) (33,006) (27,191) 
Net decrease in short-term borrowings — (5,404) (620) 
Principal repayments on long-term debt (25,620) (2,166) (69,065) 
Extraordinary item - loss related to early extinguishment of debt, net — — (2,912) 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 5,000 82,500 
Purchase of treasury stock (1,303) (6,013) — 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 3,705 1,270 14,447 

Net cash used in financing activities (65,260) (40,319) (2,841) 

Decrease in cash (192) (275) (173) 
Cash at beginning of period 239 514 687 

Cash at end ofperiod $ 47 239 514 

Supplemental Information: For the years ended December 31,1995, 1994, and 1993, the Parent Company paid income taxes of $68 million, $48 million, 
and $42 million, and interest in the amounts of $6 million, $7 million, and $7 million, respectively 

The amount of dividends paid to the Parent Company from the affiliate banks is limited by various banking regulatory agencies. The amount of cash divi­
dends available from subsidiary banks for payment in 1996, without prior approval from the banking regulatory agencies, is approximately $98,375,000. In 
prior years, Synovus' banks have received permission and have paid cash dividends to the Parent Company in excess of these regulatory limitations. 

As a result of the regulatory limitations, at December 31, 1995, approximately $644,779,000 of the Parent Company's investment in net assets of sub­
sidiary banks of $743,154,000, as shown in the accompanying condensed statements of condition, was restricted from transfer by subsidiary banks to the 
Parent Company in the form of cash dividends. 

The Federal Reserve Board issues guidelines for insured banks' minimum capital requirements. The capital requirements are based upon the perceived 
risk inherent in the assets of the company The minimum risk-based capital required is 8% of which 4% must be Tier I Capital. Synovus exceeded minimum 
levels of required regulatory capital at December 31, 1995. 

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (FDICIA) established five capital categories for banks and bank holding compa­
nies. The bank regulators adopted regulations defining these five capital categories in September 1992. Under the regulations, each bank is classified into one 
of the five categories (well-capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized) based on its level 
of risk-based capital as measured by the bank's Tier I capital ratio, total risk-based capital ratio, leverage ratio, and supervisory rating. FDICIA defines "well-
capitalized" banks or bank holding companies as entities having a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or higher a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 6% or high­
er, and a leverage ratio of 5% or higher At December 31,1995, Synovus and its bank subsidiaries have adequate capital to be classified as well-capitalized insti­
tutions under the FDICIA regulations. 
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Peat Marwick LLP 
303 Peachtree Street, N.E. 
Suite 2000 
Atlanta, GA 30308 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Synovus Financial Corp.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of Synovus Financial Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 
1995. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Synovus' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidat­
ed financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of Synovus Financial 
Corp. and subsidiaries at December 31, 1995 and 1994, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended December 31,1995, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in the summary of significant accounting policies and note 2, Synovus changed its method of accounting for investments to adopt the provi­
sions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities", at December 31,1993. 

January 26, 1996 

Member Firm of 
Klynveld Peat Matwick Goerdeler 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Years ended December 31, 1995 

Statements of Condition 

Assets $7,927,595 
Loans, net 5,430,646 
Deposits 6,727,879 
Shareholders' equity 693,555 
Book value per share 8.98 
Cash dividends declared per share .54 
Equity to assets 8.75% 
Reserve for loan losses to loans 1.48 

Statements of Income 

Net income $ 114,583 
Net income per share 1.50 

Performance Ratios 

Return on assets 1.53% 
Return on equity 17.92 
Net interest margin 5.15 
Net overhead ratio 1.75 

1994 
Percent 
Change 

7,176,079 
4,999,858 
5,924,603 

579,880 
7.67 

.45 
8.08 
1.48 

10.5% 
8.6 

13.6 
19.6 
17.1 
20.0 

89,452 
1.19 

28.1% 
25.6 

1.32 
15.79 
5.05 
1.95 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Summary 

Synovus Financial Corp. (Synovus) has continued to improve performance with the most successful year in its history Net income for 1995 was $114.6 
million, increasing 28.1% over the $89.5 million earned in 1994. Net income per share increased to $1.50 in 1995, up 25.6% from the $1.19 earned in 1994. 
Return on assets continued to improve in 1995 increasing 21 basis points to 1.53%, compared to 1.32% in 1994. Return on equity also improved to 17.92% in 
1995, compared to 15.79% in 1994. 

These record results are attributable to significant improvements in Synovus' banking operations and at Total System Services, Inc. (TSYS), Synovus' 
majority owned bankcard processing subsidiary During 1995, net interest income and non-interest income grew 13.5% and 24.2%, respectively over 1994 
while non-interest expense increased 16.0% and the provision for loan losses increased only 1.6%. 

Synovus' banking operations results, which exclude TSYS, also continued to improve during 1995. Net income for Synovus' banking operations increased 
29.3% to $92.2 million from $71.3 million in 1994. Return on assets for Synovus' banking operations improved in 1995 increasing 19 basis points to 1.26%, 
compared to 1.07% in 1994. Return on equity allocated to Synovus' banking operations also improved to 17.31 % in 1995, compared to 15.01 % in 1994. 

Synovus' total assets ended the year at $7.9 billion, a growth rate of 10.5% over 1994. This growth resulted from an $803.3 million increase, or 13.6%, 
in total deposits. Net loans grew $430.8 million, or 8.6%. The increases in both loans and deposits reflect a strong Southeastern economic environment as 
well as market share gains. Shareholders' equity grew 19.6% to $693.6 million, which represented 8.75% of total assets. 

The following discussion reviews the results of operations and assesses the financial condition of Synovus. This discussion should be read in conjunction 
with the preceding consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. 

On March 8, 1993, Synovus declared a three-for-two stock split effective April I, 1993, to shareholders of record on March 18, 1993. Share and per share 
data for all periods presented have been retroactively restated to reflect the additional shares outstanding resulting from the stock split. 

Table I 

Five Year Selected Financial Data 

(In thousands, except per share data) 
Years Ended December 31 , 

1995 

Net interest income $ 341,875 
Provision for losses on loans 25,787 
Income before extraordinary item 114,583 
Net income 114,583 

Per share data: 
Income before extraordinary item 1.50 
Netincome 1.50 
Cash dividends declared .540 

Long-term debt 106,815 
Average total equity 639,426 
Average total assets 7,498,299 

Ratios: 
Return on assets before extraordinary item 1.53% 
Return on assets after extraordinary item 1.53 
Return on equity before extraordinary item 17.92 
Return on equity after extraordinary item 17.92 
Dividend payout ratio (a) 36.69 
Average equity to average assets 8.53 

(a) Determined by dividing dividends declared by net income, including pooled subsidiaries. 

1994 1993 1992 1991 

301,231 
25,387 
89,452 
89,452 

1.19 
1.19 
.450 

139,811 
566,562 
,782,659 

1.32 
1.32 

15.79 
15.79 
36.90 
8.35 

263,213 
24,924 
80,379 
77,467 

1.09 
1.05 
.373 

143,481 
505,027 

6,141,794 

1.31 
1.26 

15.92 
15.34 
35.10 
8.22 

241,203 
33,302 
66,685 
66,685 

.92 

.92 
.310 

143,215 
444,565 

5,702,968 

1.17 
1.17 

15.00 
15.00 
28.59 
7.80 

203,728 
29,161 
51,959 
51,959 

.74 

.74 
.267 

109,794 
383,352 

4,966,446 

1.05 
1.05 

13.55 
13.55 
30.79 
7.72 
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Acquisitions 

The 1995 merger activity resulted in Synovus' entry into South Carolina and an expanded presence in Georgia. The merger with NBSC Corporation of 
Columbia, South Carolina, represents the largest in our history NBSC brings a veteran management team and an opportunity to provide products and ser­
vices to the growing markets in South Carolina. 

In addition, the mergers with Douglasville, Georgia, based Citizens & Merchants Corporation and Riverdale, Georgia, based Peach State Bank continue to 
provide Synovus with access to the growth in the Atlanta suburbs. 

A list of the bank acquisitions completed during the past two years follows: 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Company and Location 

Citizens & Merchants Corporation 
Douglasville, Georgia 

NBSC Corporation 
Columbia, South Carolina 

Peach State Bank 
Riverdale, Georgia 

State Bancshares, Inc. 
Enterprise, Alabama 

PNB Bankshares, Inc. 
Peachtree City Georgia 

Date 

April 28, 1995 

February 28, 1995 

January 31,1995 

October 31, 1994 

May 31, 1994 

Acquired 
Assets 

$ 52,000 

$1,100,000 

$ 43,000 

$ 62,000 

$ 78,000 

Shares 
Issued 

626,469 

7,929,348 

266,498 

548,879 

548,213 

Financial 
Statement Presentation 

Pooling (Non-restated) 

Restated Pooling 

Purchase 

Pooling (Non-restated) 

Pooling (Non-restated) 

This information is discussed in further detail in Note I ofthe financial statements. 

Table 2 

Net Interest Income 
(In thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 

1995 1994 1993 

Interest income $615,788 
Taxable-equivalent adjustment 5,107 

Interest income, taxable-equivalent 620,895 
Interest expense 273,913 

Net interest income, taxable-equivalent $ 346,982 

498,382 
5,599 

503,981 
197,151 

306,830 

443,872 
6,830 

450,702 
180,659 

270,043 

Earning Assets, Sources of Funds, and Net Interest Income 

Average total assets for 1995 were $7.5 billion, or 10.6% over 1994 average total assets of $6.8 billion. Average earning assets for 1995 were $6.7 bil­
lion, which represented 90% of average total assets. A $664.6 million, or 11.6%, increase in average deposits for 1995 provided the funding for a $628.3 mil­
lion, or 13.6%, increase in average net loans. Average shareholders' equity for 1995 ended the year at $639.4 million. 

For 1994, average total assets increased $640.9 million, or 10.4%. Average earning assets for 1994 were $6,1 billion, which represented 90% of average 
total assets. For more detailed information on Synovus' average statement of condition for the years ended 1995, 1994, and 1993, refer to Table 3. 

Net interest income (interest income less interest expense) is the largest component of Synovus' net income. This major source of income represents 
the earnings of Synovus' primary business of gathering funds from deposit sources and investing those funds in loans and securities. Synovus' long term objec­
tive is to manage those assets and liabilities to provide the largest possible amount of income while balancing interest rate, credit, liquidity, and capital risks. 

Net interest income is presented in this discussion on a tax-equivalent basis, so that the income from assets exempt from federal income taxes is adjust­
ed based on a statutory marginal federal tax rate of 35% in all years (See Table 2). The net interest margin is defined as taxable-equivalent net interest income 
divided by average total interest earning assets and provides an indication of the efficiency of the earnings from balance sheet activities. The net interest mar­
gin is affected by changes in the spread between interest earning asset yields and interest bearing costs (spread rate), and by the percentage of interest earning 
assets funded by interest bearing liabilities. 
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Net interest income for 1995 was a record $341.9 million, up $40.6 million, or 13.5%, from 1994. On a taxable-equivalent basis, net interest income 
was $347.0 million, up $40.2 million, or 13.1%, over 1994. During 1995, average interest earning assets increased $658.3 million, or 10.8%, with the majori­
ty of this growth being in loans. Increases in the level of time deposits were the main contributor to the $516.7 million, or 9.9%, growth in average interest 
bearing liabilities. 

The 5.15% net interest margin achieved in 1995 is a 10 basis point increase over the 5.05% reported for 1994. This increase was primarily due to a 92 
basis point increase in interest earning asset yields and a greater contribution from non-interest bearing funding sources. In 1995, the earning asset mix shifted 
more toward loans versus investment securities. This mix change had a favorable impact on the overall earning asset yield. Increases in the rate paid on inter­
est bearing liabilities are primarily attributable to two factors. One factor is the continued repricing of deposits upward during 1995 with a general lag in 
deposit repricing as compared to interest earning assets. The other factor is the change in the mix of interest bearing liabilities as customers began moving 
their deposits back to higher paying time deposits from lower paying transaction accounts, as their expectations of the market rates changed in 1995. Another 
influence impacting the net interest margin is the percentage of earning assets funded by interest bearing Jiabilities. Funding for Synovus' earning assets comes 
from interest bearing liabilities, non-interest bearing liabilities, and shareholders' equity Earning assets funded by non-interest bearing liabilities continue to 
provide a positive impact on the net interest margin. 

During 1994, net interest income and tax-equivalent net interest income increased 14.4% and 13.6%, respectively Average interest earning assets grew 
10.0% while interest bearing liabilities increased 8.6%. This growth, along with a 16 basis point improvement in the net interest margin to 5.05% from 4.89%, 
contributed to Synovus' earnings. The increase in the spread rate of 11 basis points was the result of a 13 basis point increase in the yield on earning assets 
offset by a 2 basis point increase in the rate paid on interest bearing liabilities. The net interest margin also increased as a result of a 14.8% increase in aver­
age non-interest bearing demand deposits. The increasing market rates experienced during 1994 resulted in the repricing of interest earning assets upward, 
while depositors reinvested funds from maturing time deposits into savings accounts, interest bearing demand accounts, and money market accounts on a 
temporary basis, as their expectations were for further increases in market rates. 

Despite the growth in net interest income and the strong net interest margin, the margin declined from a first quarter high of 5.25% to 5.10% in the 
fourth quarter of 1995. This decline during 1995 primarily resulted from a shift of transaction oriented deposit accounts to time deposits. Synovus sought to 
manage this decline through the use of product and pricing management as well as hedging opportunities using off-balance sheet derivatives. These activities 
are discussed further in the "Off-Balance Sheet Derivatives for Interest Rate Risk Management" section of this report. 

F-30 



ANNUAL REPORT 1995 

Table 3 

Consol idated Average Balances, Interest, and Yields 

(In thousands) 

1995 1994 1993 

Average 
Balance 

Assets 
Interest earning assets: 

Taxable loans, net (a) (b) $5,288,863 
Tax-exempt loans, net (b) (c) 38,044 
Reserve for loan losses (80,034) 

Loans, net 5,246,873 

Taxable investment securities (d) 1,270,063 

Tax-exempt investment securities (c)(d)... 120,064 

Total investment securities 1,390,127 

Interest earning deposits with banks 1,828 
Federal funds sold 101,334 

Total interest earning assets 6,740,162 

Cash and due from banks 298,328 
Premises and equipment, net 209,415 
Other real estate 13,582 
Other assets (e) 236,812 

Total assets $7,498,299 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Interest bearing liabilities: 

interest bearing demand deposits $ 887,694 
Money market accounts 915,710 
Savings deposits 475,962 
Time deposits 3,113,375 
Federal funds purchased and 

securities sold under agreement 
to repurchase 216,342 

Other borrowed funds 125,317 

Total interest bearing liabilities 5,734,400 

Spread rate 

Non-interest bearing demand deposits 986,582 
Other liabilities 137,891 
Shareholders' equity 639,426 

Total liabilities and 

shareholders' equity $7,498,299 

Net interest income/margin 

Taxable-equivalent adjustment 

Net interest income, actual 

Interest 

522,258 
4,230 

526,488 

77,198 
11,096 

88,294 

107 
6,006 

620,895 

23,947 
36,817 
13,746 

179,251 

12,092 
8,060 

273,913 

346,982 

(5,107) 

$341,875 

Yield/ 
Rate 

9.87% 
11.12 

10.03 

6.08 
9.24 

6.35 

5.85 
5.93 

9.2! 

2.70% 
4.02 
2.89 
5.76 

5.59 
6.43 

4.78 

4.43% 

5.15% 

Average 
Balance 

$4,643,731 
45,755 
(70,893) 

4,618,593 

1,270,976 
123,437 

1,394,413 

641 
68,196 

6,081,843 

284,651 
197,313 
15,182 

203,670 

$6,782,659 

$ 873,992 
863,081 
510,380 

2,574,468 

235,858 
159,900 

5,217,679 

892,800 
105,618 
566,562 

$6,782,659 

Interest 

412,086 
4,747 

416,833 

72,546 
11,780 

84,326 

35 
2,787 

503,981 

22,614 
26,126 
14,226 

113,953 

10,021 
10,211 

I97I5I 

306,830 

(5,599) 

$301,231 

Yield/ 
Rate 

8.87% 
10.37 

9.03 

5.71 
9.54 

6.05 

5.46 
4.09 

8.29 

2.59% 
3.03 
2.79 
4.43 

4.25 
6.39 

3.78 

451% 

5.05% 

Average 
Balance 

$4,175,384 
54,048 

(66,057) 

4,163,375 

1,115,237 
137,744 

1,252,981 

2,324 
107,850 

5,526,530 

273,921 
183,665 
19,045 

138,633 

$6,141,794 

$ 780,292 
829,275 
434,037 

2,443,877 

158,050 
157,181 

4,802,712 

777,973 
56,082 

505,027 

$6,141,794 

Interest 

358,366 
5,197 

363,563 

69,494 
14,318 

83,812 

127 
3,200 

450,702 

20,512 
23,529 
12,643 

107,960 

5,045 
10,970 

180,659 

270,043 

(6,830) 

$263,213 

Yield/ 
Rate 

8.58% 
9.62 

8.73 

6.23 
10.39 

6,69 

5.46 
2.97 

8.16 

2.63% 
2.84 
2.91 
4.42 

3.19 
6.98 

3.76 

4.40% 

4.89% 

(a) Average loans are shown net of unearned income. Nonperforming loans are included. 

(b) Interest income includes loan fees as follows: 1995 - $20,825, 1994 - $ 19,140, 1993 - $ 19,176. 

(c) Reflects taxable-equivalent adjustments, using the statutory federal income tax rate of 35%, in adjusting interest on tax-exempt loans and 

investment securities to a taxable-equivalent basis. 

(d) Includes certain investment securities available for sale, at their respective average amortized cost. For the years ended December 31,1995, 1994, and 

1993, the average amortized cost ofthese securities amounted to $881,063, $863,655, and $55,781, respectively 

(e) In 1995 and 1994 there were $7,674 and $8,293, respectively of average net unrealized losses on investment securities available for sale. Synovus 

adopted SFAS No. 115 on December 31,1993. Prior to that date, the average recorded balance of net unrealized gains or losses was insignificant. 
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Table 4 

Rate/Volume Analysis 
(In thousands) 

1995 Compared to 1994 

Change Due to (a) 

Volume 
Yield/ 
Rate 

Net 
Change 

1994 Compared to 1993 

Change Due to (a) 

Volume 

Interest earned on: 
Taxable loans, net $57,249 52,923 110,172 40,197 
Tax-exempt loans, net (b) (800) 283 (517) (797) 
Taxable investment securities (52) 4,704 4,652 9,705 
Tax-exempt investment securities (b) (322) (362) (684) (1,487) 
Interest earning deposits with banks 65 7 72 (92) 
Federal funds sold 1,354 JfiiS 3,219 (1,177) 

Total interest income 57,494 59,420 116,914 46,349 6,930 

Interest paid on: 
Interest bearing demand deposits 355 978 1,333 2,463 (361) 
Money market accounts 1,593 9,098 10,691 959 1,638 
Savings deposits (959) 479 (480) 2,224 (641) 
Time deposits 23,853 41,445 65,298 5,769 224 
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under 

agreement to repurchase (829) 2,900 2,071 2,482 2,494 
Other borrowed funds (2,210) 59 (2,151) 190 (949) 

Total interest expense 21,803 54,95? 76,762 14,087 2,405 

Netinterestincome $35,691 J ^ 40,152 32,262 4,525 

(a) The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to the rate component. 

(b) Reflects taxable-equivalent adjustments using the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% in 1995 and 1994 in adjusting interest on 
tax-exempt loans and investment securities to a taxable-equivalent basis. 

Yield/ 
Rate 

13,523 
347 

(6,653) 
(1,051) 

— 
764 

Net 
Change 

53,720 
(450) 

3,052 
(2,538) 

(92) _m 
53,279 

2,102 
2,597 
1,583 
5,993 

4,976 
(759) 

16,492 

36,787 

Non-Interest Income 

Non-Interest income consists of a wide variety of fee generating services viewed as traditional banking services along with revenues earned by TSYS, 
Synovus' bankcard data processing company During 1995, total non-interest income increased $66.5 million, or 24.2%. The majority of this increase was due 
to growth at TSYS. 

TSYS contributed approximately 70% of Synovus' total non-interest income in 1995 with the majority of this reported as data processing services 
income. Data processing services income is derived principally from the servicing of individual bankcard accounts for the card issuing customers of TSYS. The 
growth in TSYS is evidenced by the average number oftotal cardholder accounts processed by TSYS, which was approximately 53.1 million in 1995, com­
pared to 39.3 million in 1994, and 32.5 million in 1993. TSYS currently processes 63 million cardholder accounts across the United States, Puerto Rico, 
Canada, and Mexico. 

A significant amount of TSYS' revenues are derived from certain major customers. For the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993, two cus­
tomers accounted for approximately 34%, 36%, and 37% of revenues, respectively As a result, the loss of one of these major customers could have a material 
adverse effect on TSYS' results of operations. 

In January of 1996, TSYS successfully completed the conversion of approximately 20,000 Bank of America cardholder accounts to TS^ and in early 
February of 1996, Bank of America began opening new cardholder accounts on TSl TSYS' conversion schedule with Bank of America contemplated comple­
tion of the conversion of the balance of Bank of America's cardholder accounts by the end of 1996; however, there have been delays and this conversion 
schedule may be changed and portions of Bank of America's cardholder accounts may be converted in 1997. While delays in Bank of America's conversion 
schedule allow Bank of America certain remedies, including the receipt offinancial penalties and the right to terminate its relationship with TSYS, TSYS' man­
agement believes all of Bank of America's cardholder accounts will be successfully converted. The conversion and processing of Bank of America's cardholder 
accounts is not expected to have a material impact on TSYS' 1996 financial condition or results ofoperations. 

Revenues derived from the processing of TSYS' merchant account customers who accept certain private label cards, as well as bankcards, are included 
in data processing services income. Due to a significantly higher volume of transactions and item charges per individual account than consumer cardholder 
accounts, merchant accounts generally provide more revenue per account processed. At year-end 1995, TSYS was processing over 600,000 
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merchant accounts, a 57.9% increase over the 380,000 accounts being processed at year-end 1994; 269,000 merchant accounts were being processed at year-
end 1993. The majority of the increase in merchant accounts being processed is attributable to the over 100,000 merchant accounts converted in connection 
with TSYS' joint venture with a number of banks in Mexico, Total System Services de Mexico, S.A. de C.V, (TSYS de Mexico). Additionally 40,000 merchant 
accounts of an existing customer previously processed by another processor contributed to the increase. Revenues from merchant accounts processing were 
approximately $12.9 million, $9.2 million, and $7.0 million in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively 

Synovus continues to emphasize the importance of growth in non-interest related sources of income in its banking operations. Synovus looks to develop 
new sources of non-interest related income and to reprice services and products to reflect their related costs and value to customers. Non-interest income 
reported by Synovus' banking operations increased $5.1 million, or 5.7%, in 1995. Excluding the $2.9 million gain on the sale of certain credit card accounts 
recorded in 1994, banking operations' non-interest income increased $7.8 million, or 9.1%. 

Service charges on deposit accounts have historically been one of the primary sources of other income for Synovus' banking operations. In 1995, service 
charges on deposit accounts increased $5.2 million, or 13.0%, as a result of increases in the number of accounts serviced and increased fee structures. 

On January 1, 1995, Synovus formed Synovus Trust Company, a new affiliate in which to consolidate all Synovus' Georgia trust operations. This new affil­
iate is expected to bring continued efficiencies and expertise to this banking service. Trust fees for 1995 increased $.9 million, or 9.7%, over 1994. Fees for 
trust services are derived from performing estate administration, personal trust, corporate trust, and employee benefit plan administration. At December 31, 
1995 and 1994, total market value of assets administered by Synovus Trust Company and affiliate bank trust operations was approximately $3.5 billion and 
$2.6 billion, respectively 

Non-interest income in 1995 has also been positively impacted by increases in revenues from mortgage banking and related servicing. In June of 1994, 
Synovus Mortgage Corp. was formed to enhance the mortgage products offered by the banking affiliates and to generate additional fee income through mort­
gage servicing. Synovus Mortgage Corp. provides expertise in the areas of products and pricing to the affiliate banks and serves as an outlet for placing these 
mortgage loans into the secondary market while retaining the related servicing rights. The adoption of SFAS No. 122, in July of 1995, had a small favorable 
impact on non-interest income. 

In 1994, total non-interest income increased $38.1 million, or 16.1 %. Revenues from bankcard data processing services offered by TSYS were the largest 
contributor increasing $29.8 million, or 20.1 %, over 1993. Service charges on banking operations' deposit accounts increased $2.3 million, or 5.8%, primarily 
as a result of continued grovrth in the number of accounts serviced. Fees for trust services fell slightly less than 2%, in 1994 from an extremely strong 1993. 
Other operating income increased $7.8 million, or 24.9%, in 1994 primarily due to two acquisitions in 1994, increases in gains on sales of other real estate, 
merchant fees on credit cards, and a $2.9 million gain on the sale of certain credit card accounts. 

Non-Interest Expense 

Non-interest expense increased $66.2 million, or 16.1%, in 1995 over 1994. Management analyzes non-interest expense in two separate components: 
banking operations and TSYS. The table below summarizes this data for 1995, 1994, and 1993: 

1995 1994 1993 

(Inthousands) Banking TSYS Banking TSYS Banking TSYS 

Salaries and other personnel expense $157,533 94,946 138,480 73,051 125,897 54,517 

Net occupancy and equipment expense 35,080 64,549 32,136 51,283 29,258 43,421 

Other operating expenses 72,721 47,291 83,836 28,139 72,737 21,521 

Minority Interest 5,333 — 4,325 — 3,896 — 

Total non-interest expense $270,667 206,786 258,777 152,473 231,788 119,459 

Non-interest expense related to TSYS increased $54.3 million, or 35.6%, in 1995 over 1994 with a significant portion ofthis increase being employment 
expenses. The average number of employees increased from 1,874 in 1994 to 2,087 in 1995. This grovrth in employees along with salary increases and a new 
employee retirement plan resulted in a $21.9 million, or 30.0%, increase in employment expenses. 

As TSYS expanded its fee-generating services, equipment rental, depreciation, and amortization expense related to the acquisition of facilities, equip­
ment, and computer software increased. Total occupancy and equipment expenses increased $ 13.3 million, or 25.9%, in 1995. A significant portion of this 
increase can be attributed to the amortization of TSl which commenced in October 1994 and amounted to $3.3 million in 1995 compared to $.8 million in 
1994. TSYS continues to monitor and assess its building and equipment needs as it positions itself for future growth and expansion. 

Other operating expenses at TSYS increased $19.2 million, or 68.1%, in 1995 over 1994. A number of factors contributed to this increase. The volume 
of supplies related to the processing of accounts increased due to the growth in number of accounts serviced, coupled with an increase in the costs of sup­
plies, especially paper Travel expenses were up significantly in 1995 due to travel necessitated by the startup of TSYS de Mexico, which required a significant 
amount of on-site training. Other operating expenses also increased in 1995 as a result of certain provisions made for contractual or negotiated processing 
commitments. These provisions were deemed necessary in view of the increased risks associated with the significant growth in the number of accounts 
processed. Also contributing to the grovrth in other operating expenses are costs related to the conversion of clients to TSl 

In 1995, non-interest expense for Synovus' banking operations increased $ 11.9 million, or 4.6%. The majority of increased expenses were in employ­
ment expense and related primarily to additional employees hired in 1995. The average number of employees in banking operations increased from 4,025 in 
1994 to 4,272 in 1995. This grovrth was primarily due to grovrth within the banking affiliates, with a portion of this increase related to acquisitions. Other fac­
tors causing an increase in non-interest expense include salary increases, a new employee retirement plan, and a $3.2 million expense related to the termina­
tion of the previous employee retirement plan. The banking operations efficiency ratio improved from 64.76% in 1994 to 60.95% in 1995. These improve­
ments were primarily the result of increased revenues, expense control, and a decrease in the FDIC insurance rate. 
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Increases in non-interest expense were partially offset by a $4.9 million decrease in FDIC premium expense in 1995 over 1994 due to the lowering, in 
1995, ofthe FDIC assessment rate on deposits. Synovus believes that the current banking legislation willresult in additional 1996 reductions in FDIC insur­
ance paid by the well-capitalized banks. Additionally deposits of approximately $600 million, guaranteed by the Savings Association Insurance Fund, may be 
subject to a one-time assessment which would result in a $4 million to $6 million pre-tax charge to 1996 earnings. 

Quality service for Synovus' customers, provided in the most efficient manner, continues to be a priority. During 1994, Synovus embarked upon a 
"modernization" effort, under which all banking support functions are being reviewed for potential improvements. Synovus is investing in improved technolo­
gy such as platform automation, and is standardizing certain support processes. Synovus believes that this effort will provide a greatly improved product deliv­
ery mechanism and will increase the productivity of the support functions. 

Efforts are also directed toward the development of new banking services as well as enhancements to existing banking services. Recent developments 
are in the areas of touchtone banking, on-line capabilities, and new investment management services. Synovus continues to reorganize and refocus its 
resources whenever it can more effectively and efficiently deliver products and services to its customers. Some of these efforts are being accomplished 
through a new non-bank subsidiary Synovus Administrative Services Corp. (SASC). SASC will provide future efficiency by eliminating some of the duplicative 
functions that exist among Synovus affiliates. 

In 1994, total non-interest expense increased $60.0 million, or 17.1 %, over 1993. Expenses incurred at TSYS increased $33.0 million, or 27.6%, in 1994 
over 1993 as TSYS prepared for expansion of its fee-generating services. In 1994, the average number of employees at TSYS increased from 1,504 in 1993 to 
1,874 in 1994. The Quickstart programmer class which began in the second quarter of 1994 added IOO analyst trainees upon enrollment. Employee additions 
were also necessary to serve the growing cardholder base. Remaining Increases in employment expenses were due to normal salary increases and related 
benefits. Increases in equipment and occupancy expenses were also required in 1994, as compared to 1993, as TSYS obtained substantial new, technologically-
advanced equipment in order to meet its business needs. 

Non-interest expense for Synovus' banking operations increased $27.0 million, or 11.6%, in 1994 over 1993. New hires, salary increases, and related 
benefits account for most ofthis increase. Other factors include FDIC insurance increases related to deposit grovrth, professional fee increases, and general 
increases related to two acquisitions completed in 1994. 

In October of 1993, Synovus issued ten year, non-callable Senior notes totaling $75 million at a rate of 6.125%. A portion of the proceeds were used to 
prepay $45 million in long-term debt that carried a higher rate than the new issue. This prepayment resulted in a one-time after-tax charge of $2.9 million that 
was expensed in the third quarter of 1993 and has reduced interest costs in subsequent years. 

Investment Securities 

Synovus' investment securities portfolio consists of debt and equity securities which are categorized as either available for sale or held to maturity. 
Synovus has an insignificant balance of trading investment securities used to facilitate business at Synovus Securities, Inc., Synovus' wholly-owned broker/deal­
er company Investment securities provide Synovus with a source of liquidity and a relatively stable source of income. The investment securities portfolio also 
provides management with a tool to balance interest rate risk and credit risk related to the loans on the balance sheet. At December 31,1995, approximate­
ly $879.2 million of these investment securities were pledged as required collateral for certain deposits. See Table 14 for maturity and average yield informa­
tion for the available for sale and held to maturity investment securities. 

Synovus' investment strategy focuses on the use of the investment securities portfolio to manage the interest rate risk created by the natural mismatch 
inherent in the loan and deposit portfolios. With the strong loan demand at Synovus' affiliate banks, there is little need for investment securities solely to 
augment income or utilize uninvested deposits. Therefore, Synovus maintains a fairly conservative posture with respect to the types of investment securities 
in which it invests. As such, Synovus' investment securities are primarily U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Government agencies, and Government agency sponsored 
mortgage-backed securities, all of which have a high degree of liquidity. A mortgage-backed security depends on the underlying pool of mortgage loans to pro­
vide a cash flow "pass-through" of principal and interest. At December 31,1995, substantially all of the collateralized mortgage obligations and mortgage-
backed pass-through securities held by Synovus were issued or backed by Federal agencies. 

As of December 31, 1995 and 1994, the estimated fair value of investment securities as a percentage of their amortized cost was IOI .0% and 96.0%, 
respectively During 1995, the bond market performance was strong due to expectations of future interest rate declines. This strong performance had a 
positive impact on the market value of Synovus' investment securities portfolio. The investment securities portfolio had gross unrealized gains of $ 19.8 mil­
lion and gross unrealized losses of $5.2 million, for a net unrealized gain of $ 14.6 million as of December 31, 1995. As of December 31,1994, the invest­
ment securities portfolio had a net unrealized loss of $54.3 million. In accordance with SFAS No. 115, shareholders' equity contained a net unrealized gain 
of $5.8 million and a net unrealized loss of $20.7 million recorded on the available for sale portfolio as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively Table 
5 presents the carrying value of investment securities held to maturity and investment securities available for sale at December 31,1995, 1994, and 1993. 

During 1995, the average balance of investment securities remained flat at $ 1.4 billion as compared to 1994. Synovus earned a taxable-equivalent rate of 
6.35% and 6.05% for 1995 and 1994, respectively on its investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 1995 and 1994, average investment securities 
represented 20.6% and 22.9%, respectively of average interest earning assets. This decrease in the percentage of average investment securities to average 
interest earning assets is due to strong grovrth in the loan portfolio. Refer to Table 3 for more information on average investment securities. 

On December 21,1995, Synovus exercised an option allowed by "Special Report - a Guide to Implementation of FASB No. 115, Accounting for 
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities - Questions and Answers" to make a one time transfer of investment securities held to maturity to 
investment securities available for sale. This transfer was made to add further liquidity and flexibility to the portfolio that will enable Synovus to more effec­
tively manage its interest rate risk position. The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofthe investment securities transferred was $133.7 million and 
$133.9 million, respectively 
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Table 5 

Investment Securities 
(In thousands) 

1995 

Investment Securities Held to Maturity: 
U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies $ 81,772 
Mortgage-backed securities 171,275 
State and municipal 121,761 
Other investments 6,110 

Total securities held to maturity $ 380,918 

Investment Securities Available for Sale: 
U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies $ 1,004,286 
Mortgage-backed securities 88,196 
State and municipal 1,322 
Other investments 12,494 

Total securities available for sale $1,106,298 

Total Investment Securities: 
U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies $ 1,086,058 
Mortgage-backed securities 259,471 
State and municipal 123,083 
Other investments 18,604 

Total investment securities $ 1,487,216 

December 31 , 

1994 

159,354 
243,220 
121,834 

8,525 

1993 

89,111 
244,586 
135,041 

7,243 

532,933 

767,544 
24,413 
1,491 

11,321 

804,769 

926,898 
267,633 
123,325 
19,846 

1,337,702 

475,981 

807,353 
49,092 

939 
14,984 

872,368 

896,464 
293,678 
135,980 
22,227 

1,348,349 

Loans 

Loans are the primary interest earning asset for Synovus. When analyzing prospective loans, management assesses both interest rate objectives and 
credit quality objectives in determining whether to extend a given loan and the appropriate pricing for that loan. Operating under a decentralized structure, 
management emphasizes lending in affiliates' respective communities. As illustrated in Table 6, Synovus strives toward maintaining a diversified loan portfolio 
to spread risk and reduce exposure to economic downturns that may occur in different segments of the economy, geographic locations, or in particular indus­
tries. Demonstration of that strategy results in the fact that Synovus does not have any concentration of loans to any single industry or borrower, no foreign 
loans, and only $1.5 million in highly leveraged transaction credits as ofthe end of 1995. 

Representing 78% of average earning assets and 70% of average total assets, net loans increased $430.8 million, or 8.6%, during 1995. Continued market 
share gains through successful business development and additional products and services offered to the current customer base has afforded Synovus this loan 
grovrth. In addition, the acquisitions of Citizens & Merchants Corporation and Peach State Bank contributed approximately $60.0 million in loan growth. 

Synovus has enjoyed a relatively strong average loan-to-deposit ratio over the past three years. The average loan-to-deposit ratio for 1995, 1994, and 1993 
was 83.5%, 82.1%, and 80.3%, respectively. 

The loan grovrth during 1995 was primarily internally generated through an ever increasing focus on affiliate bank customers. The grovrth in commercial 
loans vras primarily centered in the larger markets in Alabama, South Carolina, and Georgia. These markets have experienced economic grovrth in 1995, 
especially with respect to real estate and working capital loans. Real estate construction and commercial real estate mortgage loans increased in 1995 due to 
economic grovrth in many of the Southeastern communities Synovus affiliate banks serve. Credit card loan grovrth has been most dramatically impacted by 
the increased number of customer accounts in several affiliate banks. Other installment loans have increased with targeted consumer loan products offered at 
selected affiliate banks. The growth in mortgage loans held for sale is mostly attributable to underwriting mortgage loans that are sold to third party investors, 
while retaining the servicing of those loans at Synovus Mortgage Corp. Synovus' mortgage loans held for sale are pre-commited extensions and are generally 
held less than thirty days, after which the loans are sold in the market to an unaffiliated investor The slight decrease in retail real estate mortgage loans from 
1994 to 1995 results primarily from the fact that Synovus has generated more mortgage loans for sale versus loans retained as interest earning assets. In addi­
tion, the decrease in mortgage loan interest rates during 1995 encouraged refinancings, which also reduced retail real estate mortgage loans. 

Synovus has reduced nonperforming assets during 1995 as a result of constant attention and focus on loan quality while at the same time meeting the 
customers' needs. Loan officers work with each customer to determine which loan products will optimally meet their individual and specific lending needs. 
This focus on underwriting loans that benefit the customer, while maintaining credit quality standards, causes Synovus to be optimistic about the future 
grovrth and quality ofthe loan portfolio. 

The composition of the loan portfolio at the end of the past five years, as shown in Table 6 and Table 7, presents the maturity distribution of selected cate­
gories within the loan portfolio. 
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Table 6 

Loans by Type 
(In thousands) 

1995 

Commercial: 
Commercial, financial, and agricultural $ 1,931,004 
Real estate-construction 578,712 
Real estate-mortgage 1, 160,089 

Total commercial 3,669,805 
Retail: 

Real estate-mortgage 824,998 
Installment loans-credit card 222,204 
Installment loans-other 784,972 
Mortgage loans held for sale 24,863 

Total retail 1,857,037 

Totalloans 5,526,842 

Unearned income (14,812) 

Total loans, net of unearned $ 5,512,030 

December 31 , 

1994 1993 1992 1991 

1,783,928 
472,131 

1,030,524 

3,286,583 

865,642 
171,475 
756,402 
9,465 

1,802,984 

5,089,567 

(14,691) 

5,074,876 

1,567,310 
414,801 
890,297 

2,872,408 

760,530 
150,653 
664,554 
23,409 

1,599,146 

4,471,554 

(18,148) 

4,453,406 

1,423,124 
376,641 
817,905 

2,617,670 

690,563 
136,794 
603,418 
11,744 

1,442,519 

4,060,189 

(25,371) 

4,034,818 

1,358,425 
359,518 
779,765 

2,497,708 

659,170 
130,575 
575,985 
12,165 

1,377,895 

3,875,603 

(31,214) 

3,844,389 

Table 7 

Loan Matur i ty Distr ibut ion and Interest Sensitivity 
(In thousands) 

D e c e m b e r S I , 1995 

One Over One Year Over 
Year Through Five Five 

O r Less Years Years Total 
Selected loan categories: 

Commercial, financial, and agricultural $ 1,015,108 680,264 235,632 1,931,004 
Real estate-construction 439,671 _93386 45,155 578,712 

Total $1,454,779 774,150 280,787 2,509,716 

Loans due after one year: 
Having predetermined interest rates $ 510,175 
Having floating interest rates 544,762 

Tbtal $1,054,937 

Commercial, financial, and agricultural loans include industrial revenue bonds and other loans that are granted primarily on the strength of the borrow­
er's ability to generate repayment cash flows from income sources as well as the borrower's general credit standing, even though such loans and bonds may be 
secured by real estate or other assets. Real estate construction and mortgage loans represent extensions of credit used as interim or permanent financing of 
commercial properties that are secured by real estate as well as I -4 family first mortgage loans. 

Generally, retail lending decisions are made based upon the cash flow or earning power of the borrower which represents the primary source of repay­
ment. However, in many lending transactions collateral is taken to provide an additional measure of security Transactions secured by collateral result in a 
secondary source of repayment in that the collateral may be liquidated. Synovus determines the need for collateral on a case-by-case basis. Factors consid­
ered include the current and prospective credit-worthiness ofthe customer, terms ofthe loan, and economic conditions. 
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Provision for Losses on Loans and Net Charge-Offs 

Despite Synovus' credit standards, internal controls, and continuous loan review process, the inherent risk in the nature of lending results in periodic 
charge-offs. The provision for loan losses is the charge to operating earnings necessary to maintain an adequate reserve for loan losses. Through the provi­
sion for loan losses, Synovus maintains a reserve for loan losses that management believes is adequate to absorb losses within the loan portfolio. However, 
future additions to the reserve may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of 
their examination procedures, periodically review Synovus' affiliate banks' reserve for loan losses. Based on their judgments about information available to 
them at the time of their examination, such agencies may require Synovus' affiliate banks to recognize additions to their reserve for loan losses. 

Table 8 

Reserve for Loan Losses 
(In thousands) 

Reserve for loan losses at beginning of year 
Reserve for loan losses of acquired affiliates 

Loans charged off during year: 
Commercial: 

Commercial, financial, and agricultural 
Real estate-construction 
Real estate-mortgage 

Total commercial 

Retail: 
Real estate-mortgage 
Installment loans-credit card 
Installment loans-other 
Mortgage loans head for sale 

Total retail 

Total loans charged off 

Recoveries of loans previously charged off during the year: 
Commercial: 

Commercial, financial, and agricultural 
Real estate-construction 
Real estate-mortgage 

Total commercial 
Retail: 

Real estate-mortgage 
Installment loans-credit card 
Installment loans-other 
Mortgage loans held for sale 

Total retail 

Total loans recovered 

Net loans charged off during year 

Additions to reserve through provision expense 

Reserve for loan losses at end of year 

Reserve for loan losses to loans 

Ratio of net loans charged off during the year to average 
net loans outstanding during the year 

Years Ended December 31 , 

1995 

$75,018 
1,001 

13,746 
239 

1,840 

15,825 

209 
6,627 
2,271 

9,107 
24,932 

1,217 
50 
92 

1,359 

l i s 
1,237 
1,799 

3,151 

4,510 

20,422 

25,787 

$81,384 

1.48% 

.38% 

1994 

67,270 
1,535 

13,809 
240 

1,849 

15,898 

210 
6,658 
2,282 

9,150 

25,048 

1,585 
65 

120 

1,770 

149 
1,611 
2,344 

4,104 

5,874 

19,174 

25,387 

75,018 

1.48 

.41 

1993 

61,336 

13,097 
228 

1,753 

15,078 

200 
6,315 
2,164 

8,679 
23,757 

1,287 
52 
97 

1,436 

121 
1,308 
1,902 

3,331 

4,767 

18,990 

24,924 

67,270 

1.51 

.45 

1992 

55,279 
8 

17,761 
309 

2,378 

20,448 

271 
8,563 
2,935 

11,769 
32,217 

1,339 
55 

IOI 

1,495 

126 
1,362 
1,981 

3,469 

4,964 

27,253 

33,302 

61,336 

I.S2 

.68 

1991 

45,512 
7,135 

16,731 
291 

2,240 

19,262 

255 
8,066 
2,765 

11,086 

30,348 

1,030 
42 
78 

1,150 

97 
1,048 
1,524 

2,669 

3,819 

26,529 

29,161 

55,279 

1.44 

.78 

In order to determine the adequacy of the reserve for loan losses and to determine the need for potential charges to the reserve, a formal review is pre­
pared, quarterly to assess the risk within the loan portfolio. This review, conducted by lending officers, as well as an independent loan administration depart­
ment, includes analyses of historical performance, the level of nonperforming loans, specific analyses of certain problem loans, loan activity since the last quarter, 
consideration of current economic conditions, and other pertinent information. The resulting conclusions are reviewed and approved by senior management. 
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In accordance with SFAS No. 114, management, considering current information and events regarding the borrowers' ability to repay their obligations, consid­
ers a loan to be impaired when the ultimate collectibility of all amounts due, according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement, is in doubt. When a loan 
becomes impaired, management calculates the impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest 
rate, if the loan is collateral dependent, the fair value of the collateral is used to measure the amount of impairment. The amount of impairment and any subse­
quent changes are recorded, through a charge to earnings, as an adjustment to the reserve for loan losses. When management considers a loan, or a portion 
thereof, as uncollectible, it is charged against the reserve for loan losses. 

Through improved underwriting standards and the resolution of certain identified problem assets, Synovus' asset quality continued to improve during 
1995 as measured by asset quality indicators. 

Synovus' provision for loan losses during 1995 was $25.8 million, up 1.6%, compared to $25.4 in 1994. Nonperforming assets are at their lowest level 
in more than ten years and the reserve is 350.8% of nonperforming loans. The slight increase in the provision for loan losses Is primarily a result of manage­
ment's ongoing assessment of the loan portfolio and the potential for increased loan weaknesses in light of the slowing economy Synovus was able to 
reduce the nonperforming asset ratio to its lowest level in over ten years to .64% as of December 31, 1995. Net charge-offs of $20.4 million were 6.5% 
higher in 1995 compared to $19.2 million in 1994. However, as a percent of average net loans, the net charge-off ratio improved from .41% in 1994 to 
.38% in 1995. A summary by loan category of loans charged off, recoveries of loans previously charged off, and additions to the reserve through provision 
expense is presented in Table 8. 

An allocation of the reserve for loan losses has been made according to the respective amounts deemed necessary to provide for the possibility of 
incurred losses within the various loan categories. Although other relevant factors are considered, the allocation is primarily based on previous charge-off 
experience adjusted for risk characteristic changes among each category Additional reserve amounts are allocated by evaluating the loss potential of individual 
loans that management has considered impaired. The reserve for loan loss allocation is based on subjective judgment and estimates, and therefore is not neces­
sarily indicative of the specific amounts or loan categories in which charge-offs may ultimately occur In 1995, Synovus adopted SFAS No. 114, and prior years 
have not been restated to reflect this accounting change. Refer to Table 9 for a five year comparison ofthe allocation ofthe reserve for loan losses. 

Table 9 

Allocation of Reserve for Loan Losses 
(In thousands) 

1995 

Reserve %* 

Commercial: 

Commercial, financial and 
agricultural $32,810 35% 

Real estate-construction 570 10 
Real estate-mortgage 4,392 21 

Total commercial 37,772 66 
Retail: 

Real estate-mortgage 499 15 
Installment loans-credit card 6,627 4 
Installment loans-other 14,610 14 
Mortgage loans held for sale — I 

Total retail for loan losses 21,736 34 

Unallocated 21,876 j -

Total reserve for loan losses $81,384 100% 

December 31, 

1994 

Reserve %* 

1993 1992 

Reserve 

1991 

Reserve %* Reserve %* 

$32,343 
562 

4,329 

37,234 

492 
6,658 

14,277 

21,427 

16,357 

$75,018 

36% 
9 

20 

65 

17 
3 

15 

35 

— 

100% 

$28,539 
496 

3,820 

32,855 

434 
6,315 

12,159 

18,908 

15,507 

$67,270 

35% 
9 

20 

64 

17 
3 

15 
1 

36 

— 

100% 

$28,427 
494 

3,805 

32,726 

432 
8,563 
9,838 

18,833 

9,777 

$61,336 

35% 
9 

20 

64 

17 
3 

15 
1 

J6 

— 

100% 

$27,214 
473 

3,643 

31,330 

414 
8,066 
9,550 

18,030 

5,919 

$55,279 

35% 
9 

20 

64 

17 
3 

15 
1 

36 

— 

100% 

• Loan amount in each category expressed as a percentage of total loans. 

Nonperforming Assets 

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans restructured due to debtors' financial difficulties, and real estate acquired through foreclosure 
and repossession. Nonaccrual loans consist of those loans on which recognition of interest income has been discontinued. Loans may be restructured as to 
rate, maturity or other terms as determined on an individual credit basis. Demand and time loans, whether secured or unsecured, are generally placed on 
nonaccrual status when principal and/or interest is 90 days or more past due, or earlier if it is known or expected that the collection of all principal and inter­
est is unlikely Any loan past due 90 days or more, and based on a determination of collectibility not classified as nonaccrual, is classified as a past due loan. 
Nonaccrual loans are reduced by the direct application of interest receipts to loan principal, for accounting purposes only Any payments in excess of the 
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interest that would have been earned had the loan been an accruing loan. Is applied to the principal balance. If the principal amount of the loan is well collater­
alized, interest income on such loans will be recognized as interest income in the period in which payments are received. In all circumstances, the determina­
tion of when to place loans on nonaccrual status is also based on evaluation of the individual characteristics of each particular loan, which may result in policy 
deviations in some circumstances. Table 10 presents the amount of interest income that would have been received on nonaccrual loans ifthe loans had been 
current and performing in accordance with their original terms. 

Synovus' nonperforming assets declined $5.5 million to $35.3 million, with a corresponding nonperforming asset ratio improving to .64% as of 
December 31, 1995 compared to .80% as of year end 1994. Synovus was able to reduce nonperforming assets while increasing loans $437.2 million, or 8.6%, 
during 1995. During 1995, the reserve for loan losses increased $6.4 million, or 8.5%, to $81.4 million. Based on management's analysis of potential risk 
within the loan portfolio, additions are periodically made to maintain the reserve for loan losses at an appropriate level. Loans 90 days past due and still 
accruing increased $4.0 million during 1995. Management believes that sufficient collateral value securing these loans exists to cover contractual interest and 
principal payments on the loans and management further believes the resolution of these delinquencies will not cause a material Increase in nonperforming 
assets. 

Table 10 

Nonperforming Assets 
(In thousands) 

December 31, 

1995 

Nonaccrual loans $ 21,469 
Restructured loans 1,733 

Nonperforming loans 23,202 

90 days past due and still accruing loans 11,417 

Tbtal $34,619 

Nonperforming assets: 
Nonperforming loans (a) $23,202 

Other real estate 12,071 

Tbtal $35,273 

Nonperforming assets to total loans and other real estate .64% 

Reserve for loan losses to nonperforming loans 350.76% 

1994 1993 1992 

26,497 
1,900 

28,397 
7,383 

35,780 

28,397 
12,355 

40,752 

,Q0 

264.18 

30,296 
224 

30,520 
9,870 

40,390 

30,520 
15,838 

46,358 

1.04 

220.41 

Nonaccrual 

Year ended December 31,1995: 
Interest at contracted rates (b) $ 3,670 
Interest recorded as income 1,064 

Reduction of interest income during 1995 $ 2,606 

(a) Nonperforming assets exclude loans 90 days past due and still accruing. 
(b) Interest income that would have been recorded, if the loans had been current and in accordance with their original terms. 

1991 

45,812 
135 

45,947 
11,106 

57,053 

45,947 
18,986 

64,933 

1.60 

133.49 

Restructured 

43,246 
819 

44,065 
14,224 

58,289 

44,065 
19,246 

63,311 

1.64 

125.45 

Total 

200 
|97 

3 

3,870 
1,261 

2,609 

Each one of Synovus' loans is assigned a rating, either individually or as part of a homogeneous pool, based on an internally developed grading system. An 
organizationally independent department also reviews grade assignments on an ongoing basis. Management continuously monitors nonperforming, impaired, 
and past due loans, in order to prevent further deterioration regarding the condition of these loans. Management is not aware of any material loans classified 
for regulatory purposes as loss, doubtful, substandard, or special mention, that have been excluded from nonperforming assets or impaired loans. Management 
further believes nonperforming assets and impaired loans include any material loans in which doubts exist as to the collectibility of amounts due according to 
the contractual terms ofthe loan agreement. 

Deposits 

Deposits provide the most significant funding source for Synovus' interest earning assets. Table 11 shows the relative composition of average deposits 
for 1995, 1994, and 1993. Refer to Table 12 for the maturity distribution oftime deposits of $100,000 or more. These larger deposits represented 15.2% 
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and 13.6% of total deposits at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively Synovus' large denomination time deposits are generally from customers within the 
local market area, therefore, providing a greater degree of stability than is typically associated with this source of funds. 

For 1995, Synovus' average deposits increased $664.6 million, or 11.6%, to $6.4 billion from $5.7 billion in 1994. Average interest bearing deposits for 
1995, which include interest bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, saving deposits, and time deposits, increased $570.8 million, or 11.8%, from 
1994. This strong deposit growth occurred throughout several of the Synovus affiliate banks who used targeted time deposit programs to increase their 
deposits during 1995. Average non-interest bearing demand deposits increased $93.8 million, or 10.5%, during 1995. Average interest bearing deposits 
increased $334.4 million, or 7.5%, from 1993 to 1994, while non-interest bearing demand deposits increased $114.8 million, or 14.8%. See Table 3 for further 
information on average deposits, including the average rates paid for 1995, 1994, and 1993. 

Table 11 

Average Deposits 
(In thousands) 

Years Ended December 31, 

1995 1994 1993 

892,800 
873,992 
863,081 
510,380 

2,574,468 

5,714,721 

777,973 
780,292 
829,275 
434,037 

2,443,877 

5,265,454 

Non-interest bearing demand deposits $ 986,582 
Interest bearing demand deposits 887,694 
Money market accounts 915,710 
Savings deposits 475,962 
Time deposits 3,113,375 

Total average deposits $6,379,323 

Table 12 

Maturity Distribution of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More 
(In thousands) 

Time Deposits at 
DecemberSI, 1995 

3 months or less $ 422,176 
Over 3 months through 6 months 185,451 
Over 6 months through 12 months 213,497 
Over 12 months 202,776 

Tbtal outstanding $1,023,900 

Interest Rate Risk Management 

Managing interest rate risk is the primary goal of Synovus' asset/liability management function. Synovus attempts to achieve consistent grovrth in net 
interest income while limiting volatility arising from changes in interest rates. Synovus seeks to accomplish this goal by balancing the maturity and repricing 
characteristics of balance sheet assets and liabilities along with the selective use of off-balance sheet financial instruments. Synovus' asset/liability mix is suffi­
ciently balanced so that the effect of interest rates moving in either direction is not expected to be significant over time. 

Simulation modeling is the primary tool used by Synovus to measure its interest rate sensitivity On at least a quarterly basis, the remainder of the cur­
rent year and the next full fiscal year are simulated to determine the sensitivity of net interest income to changes in interest rates. The magnitude and veloci­
ty of rate changes among the various asset and liability groups exhibit different characteristics for each possible interest rate scenario. Simulation modeling 
enables Synovus to capture the effect of these differences as well as the effect of changes in asset and liability volumes. This modeling, combined with histori­
cal experience, indicates that Synovus is positioned such that its net interest income will generally increase slightly in the near term during a rising rate envi­
ronment and decrease slightly in a declining rate environment. 

Another tool utilized by Synovus' management is cumulative gap analysis, which seeks to measure the repricing differentials, or gap, between rate sensi­
tive assets and liabilities over various time periods. Table 13 reflects the gap positions of Synovus' consolidated balance sheet on December 31, 1995 and 
1994, at various repricing intervals. The projected deposit repricing volumes reflect adjustments based on management's assumptions of the expected rate 
sensitivity relative to the prime rate for core deposits without contractual maturity (i.e., interest bearing checking, savings, and money market accounts). 
Management believes that these adjustments allow for a more accurate profile of Synovus' interest rate risk position. This gap analysis indicates that Synovus 
was moderately asset sensitive at December 31,1995, with a cumulative one-year gap of 3.2%. Management believes that adjusted gap analysis is a useful tool 
for measuring interest rate risk only when used in conjunction with its simulation model. 
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Table 13 

Interest Rate Sensit ivity 
(In millions) 

DecemberS I , 1995 

O-S 4-12 1-5 O v e r s 
Months Months Years Years 

Investmentsecurities (a) $ 48.5 232.2 764.8 432.8 
Loans, net of unearned income 2,861.9 789.1 1,434.7 426.3 
Other 124.9 — — — 

Interest sensitive assets 3,035.3 1,021.3 2,199.5 859.1 

Deposits 2,012.2 1,450.3 801.8 1,321.9 
Other borrowings 229.5 [ 2 ^ 21.3 72.9 

Interest sensitive liabilities 2,241.7 1,462.9 823.1 1,394.8 

Interest rate swaps (125.0) — 125.0 — 

Interest sensitivity gap $ 668.6 (441.6) 1,501.4 (535.7) 

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap $ 668.6 227.0 1,728.4 1,192.7 

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as a percentage of total interest sensitive assets 9.4% 3.2 24.3 16.8 

Decembe rS I , 1994 

0-3 4-12 1-5 O v e r s 
Months Months Years Years 

Investmentsecurities (a) $ 55.5 153.9 836.0 324.2 
Loans, net of unearned Income 2,597.8 784.7 1,388.0 304.4 
Other 45.1 — — — 

Interest sensitive assets 2,698.4 938.6 2,224.0 628.6 

Deposits 1,905.4 1,062.0 699.4 1,274.7 
Other borrowings 412.1 29.3 31.5 79.0 

Interest sensitive liabilities 2,317.5 1,091.3 730.9 1,353.7 

Interest sensitivity gap $ 380.9 (152.7) 1,493.1 (725.1) 

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap $ 380.9 228.2 1,721.3 996.2 

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as a percentage of total interest sensitive assets 5.9% 3.5 26.5 15.4 

(a) Excludes the effect of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities", consisting of net unrealized gains in the amount 
of $8.9 million in 1995 and net unrealized losses of $31.9 million in 1994. 
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Table 14 

Maturit ies of Investment Securities and Average Yields 
(In thousands) 

U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies: 
Within I year $ 14,924 
I to 5 years 
5 to 10 years 
More than 10 years 

Tbtal $ 81,772 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
Within I year 
I to 5 years 
5 to 10 years 
More than 10 years 

Tbtal $ 171,275 

State and municipal: 
Within I year $ 17,986 
I to 5 years 52,596 
5 to 10 years 35,218 
More than 10 years 15,961 

Tbtal $ 121,761 

Other investments: 
Within I year $ 98 
I to 5 years 1,832 
5 to 10 years 265 
More than 10 years 3,915 

Tbtal $ 6,110 

Total Investment Securities: 
Within I year $ 34,700 
I to 5 years 172,836 
5 to 10 years 79,890 
More than 10 years 93,492 

TDtal $380,918 

Investment Securities 
Held to Matur i ty 

DecemberS I , 

Amor t i zed 
Cost 

$ 14,924 
44,615 
22,233 

— 

$ 81,772 

$ 1,692 
73,793 
22,174 
73,616 

,1995 

Average 
Yield 

6.80% 
6.55 
7.44 

6.84% 

7.43% 
5.93 
7.24 
7.15 

Investment Securities 
Available for Sale 

December 31, 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

$ 241,688 
557,958 
204,131 

509 

$1,004,286 

$ 1,239 
34,612 
11,644 
40,701 

,1995 

Average 
Yield 

5.81% 
6.03 
7.02 
7.75 

6.18% 

7.41% 
6.46 
6.96 
6.63 

1.64% $ 88,196 6.62% 

9.63% 
8.70 
8.68 

10.60 

9.08% 

4.04% 
7.09 
7.92 
5.82 

6.27% 

8.29% 
6.95 
7.93 
7.69 

7.46% 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

298 
668 
98 

258 

1,322 

3,382 
3,325 
2,251 
3,536 

12,494 

246,607 
596,563 
218,124 
45,004 

$1,106,298 

10,51% 
11.77 
6.62 
8.64 

10.41% 

9.03% 
8.15 
7.64 
5.76 

7.55% 

5.87% 
6.08 
7.03 
6.58 

6.24% 

The calculation of weighted average yields for securities is based on the amortized cost and effective yields of each security weighted for the scheduled 
maturity of each security. The yield on state and municipal securities is computed on a taxable-equivalent basis using the statutory federal income tax rate of 
35% for 1995. 
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Off-Balance Sheet Derivatives for Interest Rate Risk Management 

As part of our overall interest rate risk management activities, Synovus utilizes off-balance sheet derivatives to modify the repricing characteristics of 
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. As of December 31, 1995, all off-balance sheet derivatives were interest rate swaps where Synovus receives a fixed rate 
of interest and pays a floating rate. These swaps have the effect of converting on-balance sheet floating rate assets to fixed rate assets, thereby reducing the 
natural asset sensitivity of Synovus' core banking business. 

The nature of these transactions is essentially the same as purchasing a fixed-rate security funded with a floating-rate liability All swaps utilized by 
Synovus represent end-user activities designed as hedges, all of which are linked to specific assets as part of overall interest rate risk management prac­
tices. Management feels that the utilization of these instruments provides greater financial fiexibility and is a very efficient tool for managing interest rate 
risk position. 

The notional amount of interest swaps utilized by Synovus as of December 31,1995, was $ 125 million. The notional amounts represent the amount on 
which calculations of interest payments to be exchanged are based. Although Synovus is not exposed to credit risk equal to the notional amounts, there is 
exposure to potential credit risks equal to the fair or replacement values of the swaps if the counterparty fails to perform. This credit risk is normally a very 
small percentage of the notional amount and fluctuates as interest rates change. Synovus minimizes this risk by subjecting the transaction to the same 
approval process as on-balance sheet credit activities, by dealing with only highly-rated counterparties, and by obtaining collateral agreements for exposure 
above certain predetermined limits. 

DecemberSI, 1995 
(In thousands) 

Receive Fixed Swaps 

Notional 
Amount 

$125,000 

Average 
Receive Rate 

5.98% 

Average 
Pay Rate 

5.88% 

Weighted 
Maturity 

In Months 

46 

Weighted 
Unrealized 

Gains 

1,776 

Average 
Unrealized 

Losses 

— 

Net 
Fair Value 

1,776 

The above table represents the December 31, 1995 status of all off-balance sheet derivative positions at Synovus and its affiliate bank, Columbus Bank 
and Trust Company There were no maturities, offsets, or terminations in 1995. 

Liquidity 

Liquidity represents the availability of funding to meet the needs of depositors, borrowers, and creditors at a reasonable cost, on a timely basis, and with­
out adverse consequences. Management actively analyzes and manages Synovus' liquidity position in coordination with similar committees at each affiliate bank. 
These affiliates, with the help of management, maintain liquidity in the form of cash on deposit, federal funds, securities available for sale, and cash derived from 
prepayments and maturities of both their investment and loan portfolios. Liquidity is also enhanced by the acquisition of new deposits and the well established 
core deposits of Synovus' 211 banking offices in four states. The affiliate banks monitor deposit flow and evaluate alternate pricing structures to retain and 
grow deposits. Certain Synovus affiliate banks maintain correspondent banking relationships with various national and regional financial organizations. These 
relationships provide access to short-term borrowings through federal funds which allows Synovus to meet immediate liquidity needs if required. 

Synovus serves a diversity of markets. Some of these are rapidly growing areas where loan demand outpaces the generation of deposits. However, 
through the loan participations between Synovus' affiliate banks, these loans can be funded by affiliates having lower local loan demand. Additionally lending is 
focused within the local markets served by Synovus, enabling the development of comprehensive banking relationships. 

Additionally the Parent Company requires cash for various operating needs including dividends to shareholders, business combinations, capital infusions 
into affiliates, the servicing of debt, and the payment of general corporate expenses. The primary source of liquidity for the Parent Company is dividends 
from the affiliate banks. In addition, the Parent Company has access to a $20 million line of credit. The Parent Company enjoys an excellent reputation and 
credit standing in the market place and has the ability to raise substantial amounts of funds in the form of either short or long-term borrowings. The Parent 
Company's current principal debt, senior notes totaling $75 million at a rate of 6.125%, has been rated "A" by Standard and Poors Corp., "A3" by Moody's 
Investor Service and "AA-" by Thomson Bankwatch. For a complete description of these borrowings and other borrowings by other Synovus affiliates, see 
Note 6 to Synovus' consolidated financial statements. 

The consolidated statements of cash flows detail Synovus' cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities. Net cash provided by operating 
activities was $ 152.4 million for the year ended December 31,1995, while financing activities provided $467.1 million. Investing activities used $581.4 million 
of this amount, resulting in a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of $38.1 million. 

Management is not aware of any trends, events, or uncertainties that will have, or that are reasonably likely to have a material impact on Synovus' liquidi­
ty capital resources, or operations. Further, management is not aware of any current recommendations by regulatory agencies which, if they were to be 
implemented, would have such effect. 

Capital Resources and Dividends 

Synovus has always placed great emphasis on maintaining a strong capital base and continues to exceed all minimum regulatory capital requirements. 
Management is committed to maintaining a capital level sufficient to assure shareholders, customers, and regulators that Synovus is financially sound, and to 
enable Synovus to sustain an appropriate degree of leverage to provide a desirable level of profitability Synovus has the ability to generate internal capital 
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grovrth sufficient to support the asset growth it has experienced. Total shareholders' equity of $693.6 million represented 8.75% of total assets at December 
31,1995. 

Regulators use a risk-adjusted calculation to aid them in their determination of capital adequacy by weighting assets based on the credit risk associated 
with on- and off-balance sheet assets. The majority of these risk-weighted assets are on-balance sheet assets for Synovus in the form of loans. A small por­
tion of risk-weighted assets are considered off-balance sheet assets and are primarily made up of letters of credit, loan commitments, and to a lesser extent 
interest rate swaps, that Synovus makes in the normal course of business. Capital is categorized into two types: Tier I and Tier II. The capital guidelines used 
by regulators require an 8% total risk-based capital ratio of which 4% must be Tier I capital. Additionally the regulatory agencies define a well-capitalized 
bank as one which has a leverage ratio of at least 5%, a Tier I capital ratio of at least 6%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10%. At the end of 
1995, Synovus and all affiliate banks were in excess of the minimum capital requirements with a consolidated Tier I capital ratio of 11.28% and a total risk-
based capital ratio of 12.57%, compared to Tier I and total risk-based capital ratios of 11.04% and 12.36%, respectively in 1994 as shown in Table 15. 

In addition to the risk-based capital standards, a minimum leverage ratio of 4% is required for the highest-rated bank holding companies which are not 
undertaking significant expansion programs. An additional I % to 2% may be required for other companies, depending upon their regulatory ratings and 
expansion plans. The leverage ratio is defined as Tier I capital divided by quarteriy average assets, net of certain intangibles. As of December 31, 1995, 
Synovus had a leverage ratio of 8.71%, which significantly exceeds the regulatory requirements. 

Synovus' capital level also exceeds all requirements under the Federal Reserve Board's guidelines. The Federal Reserve Board requires a minimum pri­
mary capital ratio of 5.50% and a total capital ratio of 6.00% for bank holding companies and banks. At December 31,1995, Synovus' primary and total capital 
ratios as defined by the Federal Reserve Board were 9.49% and 9.52%, respectively compared to 9.18% and 9.23%, respectively at year end 1994. 

During the third quarter of 1994, Synovus announced its plan to acquire up to 750,000 shares of Synovus common stock in the open market. Through 
December 31, 1995,362,600 shares of Synovus common stock have been purchased under this plan at an average price of $23.51. Of these shares, 266,498 
shares were used in 1995 to acquire Peach State Bank. Approximately 52,000 shares were issued to employees for vested stock option exercises. The 
remaining shares under this plan along with other treasury shares acquired before this plan amount to 43,930 as of December 31, 1995. These shares will be 
used to fund incentive stock award plans and other employee benefit plans. The remaining shares to be purchased under the stock repurchase plan will be 
purchased based on market conditions over the next two years. 

Synovus' 80.8% ownership of TSYS is an important aspect of the market price of Synovus common stock and should be considered in a comparison of 
the relative market price of Synovus common stock to other financial service companies. As of December 31, 1995, there were approximately 17,000 share­
holders of record of Synovus common stock, some of which are holders in nominee name for the benefit of a number of different shareholders. Table 16 dis­
plays high and low quotations of Synovus common stock which are based on actual transactions. 
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Table 15 

Capital Ratios (a) 
(In thousands) 

DecemberSI, 

1995 1994 

Tier I capital: 

Shareholders'equity $ 693,555 579,880 
Adjustment for SFAS No. 115 (5,774) 20,744 
Plus: Minority interest 27,790 22,483 
Less: Disallowed intangibles (41,406) (32,890) 

Tbtal Tier I capital 674,165 590,217 

Tier 11 capital: 

Eligible portion of the reserve for loan losses 74,818 66,947 
Subordinated and other qualifying debt 2,440 3,697 

Tbtal Tier II capital 77,258 70,644 

Total risk-based capital $ 751,423 660,861 

Total risk-adjusted assets $5,978,913 5,347,687 

Tier I capital ratio 11.28% 11.04 

Total risk-based capital ratio 12.57 12.36 
Leverage ratio 8.71 8.45 

Regulatory Minimums: 
Tier I capital ratio 4.00% 

Total risk-based capital ratio 8.00 
Leverage ratio 4.00 

(a) Risk-based capital ratios, for both years presented, were prepared using risked-based capital rules finalized in November, 1994, which exclude the impact 
of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities". 

Table 16 

Market and Stock Price Information 

1995 High Low 

Quarter ended December 31, 1995 $30V4 
Quarter ended September 30, 1995 
Quarter ended June SO, 1995 
Quarter ended March 31,1995 

1994 

Quarter ended DecemberSI, 1994 
Quarter ended September 30, 1994 
Quarter ended June 30, 1994 
Quarter ended March 31, 1994 

Dividends 

It is Synovus' objective to pay out approximately one-third of earnings to shareholders in cash dividends. Synovus' dividend payout ratio in 1995, 1994, 
and 1993 was 36.69%, 36.90%, and 35.10%, respectively The total dollar amount of dividends declared increased 28.5% in 1995 to $42.0 million, from $33.0 
million in 1994. Cash dividends have been paid on the common stock of Synovus (including its predecessor companies) in every year since 1891. It is the 
present intention of the Synovus Board of Directors to continue to pay cash dividends on Its common stock in accordance with the previously mentioned 
objective. Table 17 presents the declared and paid dates from recent dividends, as well as per share dividend amounts. 
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Table 17 

Dividends 
Per Share 

Date Declared Date Paid A m o u n t 

November 13, 1995 January 2, 1996 $.1350 
September I I , 1995 October 2, 1995 .1350 
May 8, 1995 July 3, 1995 .1350 
February 14, 1995 Apr i l 3, 1995 .1350 
November 14, 1994 January 3, 1995 .1125 
September 12, 1994 October 1, 1994 .1125 
May9, 1994 July I, 1994 .1125 
February 23, 1994 April I, 1994 .1125 

Commi tmen ts 

Synovus believes it has sufficient capital, liquidity, and future cash flows from operations to meet operating needs over the next year Table 18, Note 6, 
and Note 9 to Synovus' consolidated financial statements provide additional information on Synovus' short-term and long-term borrowings. 

In the normal course of its business, TSYS maintains processing agreements with its customers. These processing agreements contain contractual com­
mitments, including, but not limited to, minimum standards and time frames against which TSYS' performance is measured. In the event TSYS does not meet 
its contractual commitments with its customers, TSYS may incur penalties and/or certain customers may have the right to terminate their agreements with 
TSYS. TSYS does not believe that it will fail to meet its contractual commitments to an extent that will result in a material adverse effect on its financial condi­
tion or results of operations. 

Synovus is subject to various legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of its business. Any litigation is vigorously defended by 
Synovus and, in the opinion of management, based on consultation with external legal counsel, any outcome of such litigation would not materially affect 
Synovus' consolidated financial position. 

Currently multiple lawsuits, some seeking class action treatment, are pending against one of Synovus' Alabama banking subsidiaries that involve: (I) the 
sale of credit life insurance made in connection with consumer credit transactions; (2) payments of service fees or interest rebates to automobile dealers in 
connection with the assignment of automobile credit sales contracts to that Synovus subsidiary; and (3) the forced placement of insurance to protect that 
Synovus subsidiary's interest in collateral for which consumer credit customers have failed to obtain or maintain insurance. These lawsuits seek unspecified 
damages, including punitive damages, and some purport to be class actions which, if certified, may involve many of such subsidiary's consumer credit transac­
tions in Alabama for a number of years. Synovus intends to vigorously contest these lawsuits and all other litigation to which Synovus and its subsidiaries are 
parties. Based on information presently available, and in light of legal and other defenses available to Synovus and its subsidiaries, contingent liabilities arising 
from the threatened and pending litigation are not considered material. It should be noted, however, that large punitive damage awards, bearing little relation 
to the actual damages sustained by plantiffs, have been awarded in Alabama. 

Table 18 

Short-Term Borrowings 
(In thousands) 

The following table sets forth certain information regarding federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to repurchase, one of the principal 
components of short-term borrowings. 

1995 1994 1993 

Month end balance for year ended December 31 $ 229,477 

Weighted average interest rate at December 31 5.65% 

Maximum month end balance during the year $ 362,035 

Average amount outstanding during the year $ 216,342 

Weighted average interest rate during the year 5.59% 

412,082 

5.40 

412,082 

235,858 

4.18 

260,619 

2.81 

260,619 

158,050 

3.01 
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Income Tax Expense 

As reported in the consolidated statements of income, Synovus' income tax expense increased to $64.9 million in 1995, up from $49.5 million in 1994, 
and $42.9 million in 1993. The effective tax rate was 36.2%, 35.6%, and 34.8% in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively The increases in both 1995 and 1994 
were primarily the result of increases in pre-tax income and in the relative percentage of taxable income to total income. The increase in 1995 was also 
affected by a decrease in certain research and experimentation credits. Factors affecting 1994 were fewer state tax credits and loss carryovers in 1994 as 
compared to 1993. See Note 7 to Synovus' consolidated financial statements for a detailed analysis of income taxes. 

Inflation 

Inflation has an important impact on the grovrth of total assets in the banking industry and may create a need to increase equity capital at higher than 
normal rates in order to maintain an appropriate equity to assets ratio. Synovus has been able to maintain a high level of equity through retention of an appro­
priate percentage of its earnings. Synovus copes with the effects of inflation by managing its interest rate sensitivity gap position through its asset/liability man­
agement program and by periodically adjusting its pricing of services and banking products to take into consideration current costs. 

Parent Company 

The Parent Company's assets, primarily its investment in affiliates, are funded, for the most part, by shareholders' equity It also utilizes short-term and 
long-term debt. The Parent Company is responsible for providing the necessary funds to strengthen the capital of its affiliates if necessary acquire new affili­
ates, pay corporate operating expenses, and pay dividends to its shareholders. These operations are funded by dividends and fees received from affiliates, and 
borrowings from outside sources. 

In connection with dividend payments to the Parent Company from its affiliate banks, certain rules and regulations of the various state and federal bank­
ing regulatory agencies limit the amount of dividends which may be paid. As of December 31, 1995, $98.4 million in dividends could be paid in 1996 to the 
Parent Company from its affiliates without prior regulatory approval. Synovus anticipates receiving regulatory approval to allow affiliates to pay dividends in 
excess of these regulatory limits. 

F-47 



SYNOVUS FINANCIAL CORR 

Summary of Quarter ly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

(In thousands, except per share data) 

Presented below is a summary of the unaudited consolidated quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994. 

Fourth Third Second First 

. « „ , Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

Interest income $160,683 157,443 153,318 144,344 

Net interest income 88,274 86,262 84,509 82,830 

Provision for losses on loans 8,589 6,214 5,739 5,245 

Income before income taxes 52,966 47,197 41,788 37,518 

Net income 33,634 30,279 26,600 24,070 

Net income per share .44 .39 .35 .32 

1994 

Interest income $ 135,736 127,675 122,354 112,617 

Net interest income 81,100 77,469 74,789 67,873 

Provision for losses on loans 8,358 5,463 5,566 6,000 

Income before income taxes 33,613 37,853 35,163 32,297 

Net income 21,752 24,683 22,598 20,419 

Net income per share .29 .3} .}0 .27 
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Shareholder Infonnation 
General Offices 

P.O. Box 120 • Columbus, Go. 31902-0120 

Stock Trading Information 

Synovus Financial Corp. common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange 

(NYSE) under the symbol SNV. Price and volume information appears under the abbrevi­

ation SynovusFnl in NYSE doily stock quotation listings. 

Ratings 

Synovus Financial Corp.: Long-Term Debt, Standard and Poor's rates A, Moody's A3, 

and Thomson Bankwatch AA-. Columbus Bonk and Trust Company: Short-Term 

Cerfificates of Deposit, Standard and Poor's rotes A l ; Long-Term Ceriificates of Deposit, 

Standard and Poor's rates A-H. 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

Synovus Financial Corp. offers shareholders a convenient Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

for automatic reinvestment of dividends in the common stock of the company. Additional 

cash contributions, up to $2,500 per month, may be mode to purchase additional 

shares. For more information, contact the Transfer Agent at 1-800-503-8903 or Investor 

Relations. 

Direct Dividend Deposit Plan 

I Synovus Financial Corp. offers shareholders a convenient Direct Dividend 

Deposit Plan for automatic deposit of dividends into personal bank accounts on the 

some day dividends are paid. For more information, contact the Transfer Agent 

at 1-800-503-8903. 

Shareholder Services 

Shareholders desiring to enroll in the Synovus Dividend Reinvestment Plan; enroll in 

the Direct Dividend Deposit Plan; change the name, address, or ownership of stock; 

report lost certificates; or consolidate accounts, should contact the Transfer Agent at 

1-800-503-8903 or write: 

State Street Bonk and Trust Company • PO. Box 8200 

Boston, MA 02266-8200 

Form 10-K 

A copy of the company's 1995 annual report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities 

and Exchange Commission, is available at no charge upon written request to Investor 

Relations at the address below. 

Investor Relations 

Analysts, investors, and others seeking financial information should contact: 

Patrick A. Reynolds, Vice President 

Director of Investor Relations 

Synovus Financial Corp. 

PO. Box 120 

Columbus, Go. 31902-0120 • 706-649-5220 

Information about Synovus Financial Corp. is now available on the Internet at: 

http://www.snv.com 

Notice of Annual Shareholders' Meeting 

10:00 a.m. E.T, April 25, 1996, in the North Hall of the Columbus, Georgia, 

Convention and Trade Center 

http://www.snv.com
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